Public Document Pack

[ el | CITY OF
4o Lincoln
\\ |/  COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Committee Rooms 1 and 2,
5.30 pm City Hall, Beaumont Fee,
Lincoln, LN1 1DD

Wednesday, 26 February
2025

Membership: Councillors Bob Bushell (Chair), Gary Hewson (Vice-Chair),
Debbie Armiger, Chris Burke, Liz Bushell, Martin Christopher,
Annie Currier, Rebecca Longbottom, Bill Mara, Callum Roper and
Calum Watt

Substitute members: Councillors James Brown, Neil Murray and Emily Wood

Officers attending: Simon Cousins, Democratic Services, Kieron Manning and Louise
Simpson

The Planning Committee comprises democratically elected members who will be presented
with a recommendation from the professional officers for each application on the agenda.
After each application has been presented, those interested parties who have registered to
speak will then be given 5 minutes to verbally present their views, and, following this, the
committee will debate each proposal and make the decision, having considered all relevant
information.

Clearly the process of making a decision will inevitably cause some people to feel aggrieved,
but it is hoped that all interested parties will feel that their views have been considered as
part of the process.

Please ensure that your mobile phones are switched off or set to silent throughout the
meeting and please refrain from attempting to speak from the public gallery unless you have
formally registered to speak on an application, in which case the Chair will call you to the
table at the relevant time.

AGENDA
SECTION A Page(s)
1. Confirmation of Minutes - 29 January 2025 5-16
2. Update Sheet To Be Tabled

3. Declarations of Interest

Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct,
when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and
nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest
(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary.



4. Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order 188

5. Applications for Development

(@)
(b)

(©)

15 St Andrews Drive, Lincoln

Land Adjacent To Lindum And Minster Practice, Cabourne Court,
Lincoln

120 Larchwood Crescent, Lincoln

17 - 22

23-54

55 - 88

89 - 94



THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 (AS AMENDED)

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
FOR PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, CONSERVATION AREA AND ADVERTISEMENT
APPLICATIONS ON THE AGENDA OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

The Background Papers for the Planning, Listed Building, Conservation Area and
Advertisement Applications are:

1. The Planning Application File. This is a file with the same reference number as that
shown on the Agenda for the Application. Information from the planning application file
is available online at https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/

The application files contain the following documents:

the application forms;

plans of the proposed development;

site plans;

certificate relating to ownership of the site;

consultation letters and replies to and from statutory consultees and bodies;
letters and documents from interested parties;

memoranda of consultation and replies to and from Departments of the Council.

@~ooo0oTw

2. Any previous Planning Applications referred to in the Reports on the Agenda for the
particular application or in the Planning Application specified above.

3. Central Lincolnshire Local Plan — Adopted April 2023

4. National Planning Policy Framework - March 2012

5. Applications which have Background Papers additional to those specified in 1 to 5
above set out in the following table. These documents may be inspected at the Planning
Reception, City Hall, Beaumont Fee, Lincoln.

APPLICATIONS WITH ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND PAPERS (See 5 above.)

Application No.: Additional Background Papers


https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/

CRITERIA FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE SITE VISITS (AGREED BY DC COMMITTEE ON
21 JUNE 2006 AND APPROVED BY FULL COUNCIL ON 15 AUGUST 2006)

Criteria:

e Applications which raise issues which are likely to require detailed first hand knowledge
of the site and its surroundings to enable a well-informed decision to be taken and the
presentational material at Committee would not provide the necessary detail or level of
information.

e Major proposals which are contrary to Local Plan policies and proposals but which have
significant potential benefit such as job creation or retention, environmental
enhancement, removal of non-confirming uses, etc.

e Proposals which could significantly affect the city centre or a neighbourhood by reason
of economic or environmental impact.

e Proposals which would significantly affect the volume or characteristics of road traffic in
the area of a site.

e Significant proposals outside the urban area.
e Proposals which relate to new or novel forms of development.

e Developments which have been undertaken and which, if refused permission, would
normally require enforcement action to remedy the breach of planning control.

e Development which could create significant hazards or pollution.

So that the targets for determining planning applications are not adversely affected by the
carrying out of site visits by the Committee, the request for a site visit needs to be made as
early as possible and site visits should be restricted to those matters where it appears
essential.

A proforma is available for all Members. This will need to be completed to request a site visit
and will require details of the application reference and the reason for the request for the site
visit. It is intended that Members would use the proforma well in advance of the consideration
of a planning application at Committee. It should also be used to request further or additional
information to be presented to Committee to assist in considering the application.



[tem No. 1

Planning Committee 29 January 2025

Present: Councillor Bob Bushell (in the Chair),
Councillor Gary Hewson, Councillor Debbie Armiger,
Councillor Chris Burke, Councillor Liz Bushell, Councillor
Martin Christopher, Councillor Annie Currier, Councillor
Rebecca Longbottom, Councillor Bill Mara, Councillor
Callum Roper and Councillor Calum Watt

Apologies for Absence: None.

30. Confirmation of Minutes - 30 October 2024

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 30 October 2024 be
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a true record.

31. Update Sheet

An update sheet was circulated to members of Planning Committee in relation to
planning applications to be considered this evening, which included additional
responses for Members’ attention, received after the original agenda documents
had been published.

RESOLVED that the update sheet be received by Planning Committee.

32. Declarations of Interest

No declarations of interest were received.

33. Works to Trees

The Arboricultural Officer:

a. advised Planning Committee that the main purpose of the report provided
reasons for proposed works to trees predominantly in the City Council's
ownership, although it may include other trees at times where special
circumstances applied and officers thought it was both helpful and were
able to do so

b. sought consent to progress the works identified, as detailed at Appendix A
of the report

c. highlighted that the list did not represent all the work undertaken to Council
trees, it represented all the instances where a tree was in City Council
ownership and identified for removal, or where a tree enjoyed some
element of protection under planning legislation, and thus formal consent
was required

d. explained that ward councillors had been notified of the proposed works.

Councillor Longbottom asked for an update in respect of works to five Lime trees
in Castle Ward approved at the last meeting of Planning Committee on 30
October 2024, and enquired whether mitigation measures to reduce the loss of
trees had been discussed with Anglian Water’'s approved contractor.

5



34.
(@)

The Arboricultural Officer explained that he had not received any feedback from
Anglian Water Authority regarding the installation of an interpretation board or
suggestions made for installation of a modular planting system/ use of root
barriers. He would make further enquiries and report back to Councillor
Longbottom in person.

RESOLVED that:
1. A response to Councillor Longbottom’s enquiry in relation to the
replacement of five Lime Trees in Castle Ward be provided by the

Arboricultural Officer following the meeting.

2. The tree works set out in the schedule published within the report be
approved.

Applications for Development
White Hart Hotel, Bailgate, Lincoln

The Assistant Director of Planning:

a. referred to the application property, the White Hart Hotel, a grade Il listed
building located on the corner with Bailgate and Eastgate, with St Mary
Magdalene’s Parish Church adjoined to the south, within the Cathedral
and City Centre Conservation Area

b. detailed the City Council’s Principal Conservation Officer's description of
the history of the premises, being a complicated site comprising four
distinct building phases along the street scene

c. advised that the hotel had recently reopened following extensive
renovation works with some works still ongoing; there had been a number
of applications, including most recently for the creation of a new leisure
pool and spa, which was approved by Members of Planning Committee in
July 2024

d. advised that full planning permission was now being sought for the
construction of a new external roof terrace on the flat roof of the 1960’s
extension which fronted Bailgate, to include a frameless glass balustrade,
glazed screen and access doors

e. added that access would be taken from the existing fourth floor private
lounge accommodation; the application also proposed the removal of the
existing steel balcony to the south/east elevation and removal of the roof
mounted water tower

f. highlighted the following additional points:

e A roof terrace was previously proposed on the flat roof area to the
rear, east of the building as part of the original applications for
internal and external refurbishment works (2023/0057/FUL and
2023/0058/LBC), however, the terrace was later omitted from the
applications following advice from officers that this was not an
appropriate addition.

e Officers had concerns that this would cause harm to the setting of

6



the listed building and adjacent listed buildings as well as views
towards the Cathedral, the character and appearance of the
Conservation area and residential amenity.

e Subsequent discussions had been held between officers and the
agent regarding a possible roof terrace, although officers had
remained of the opinion that this would not be acceptable. Despite
this advice, the agent had submitted this current application for a
terrace on an alternative location, to the side of the building,
adjacent to Bailgate.

g. reported that in addition to this full application, an accompanying listed
building consent application had been submitted (2024/0618/LBC), which
only considered proposals in relation to the impact on the application
property as a designated heritage asset, whereas this full application
would consider this impact along with other matters; such as visual
amenity, the character and appearance of the Conservation area, the
setting of adjacent listed buildings and residential amenity

h. stated that both applications were being presented to Members of
Planning Committee for determination at the request of Councillor Murray

i. detailed the history to the application site within the main body of the
officer’s report

j.  provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows:

e Policy S53: Design and Amenity

e Policy S57: The Historic Environment

e Policy S58: Protecting Lincoln, Gainsborough and Sleaford’s Setting
and Character

e National Planning Policy Framework

e Planning Practice Guidance- Historic Environment

k. provided details of the issues to be assessed in relation to the planning
application, as follows:

e Policy Context

e Visual Amenity and Impact on the White Hart

e Impact on Adjacent Listed Buildings, Important Views and the
Conservation Area

e Assessment of Public Benefit

¢ Residential Amenity

I. outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise

m. referred to the Update Sheet which contained further responses received
in relation to the planning application after the agenda papers were
published

n. concluded as follows:

e Officers would recommend that the application be refused on the
grounds that the proposed glass balustrade and the use of the
existing flat roof as an external terrace would cause unacceptable

7



harm to visual amenity, the significance and setting of the listed
building, the setting and significance of listed buildings in the vicinity
and the character and appearance of the Conservation area.

e The level of less than substantial harm had neither been
appropriately justified nor was it outweighed by a public benefit.

e The application would therefore be contrary to CLLP Policies S53,
S57 and S58 and the NPPF.

Councillor Anita Pritchard addressed Planning Committee in relation to the
proposed planning application in her role as Ward Advocate. She covered the
following main points:

She wished to speak in support of the proposed planning application.

She spoke as a local ward Councillor and a custodian of Lincoln’s
heritage.

She had held discussions with residents and traders in the Bailgate area.
The White Hart had undergone much improvement and enhancement over
recent years.

These renovation works maintained a useful balance in retaining the
heritage of the building.

The plans for the most recent project were symmetrical and mindful of the
surrounding area in which the building sat.

The proposed roof terrace would offer impeccable views of the Cathedral
and City.

She had taken into account the views of the community in making her
representation this evening.

Regulating access to the roof terrace ensured there would be no impact on
businesses nearby.

The proposals represented a sustainable economic model; supporting the
local community and wider community.

The hotel would be able to showcase local products/crafts etc.

The City was a ‘must visit’" destination and the hotel offered a distinct
charm and appeal for bespoke experience events.

Having stayed once, visitors would return again to the City.

The proposal was positive for the local economy and should be supported.

Councillor Neil Murray addressed Planning Committee in relation to the proposed
planning application in his Councillor role within the City. He covered the following
main points:

He had taken the decision to speak tonight after reading the advice from
Historic England in response to the planning consultation process.

His ward already represented one side of the application building.

He also chaired the City of Lincoln Council Historic Environment Advisory
Panel alongside being the Council’'s appointed Historic Environment
Advocate.

He had been an advocate of local heritage in the City for forty years.

The recommendation to refuse this planning application was at its very
worst ‘snobbery’.

The planning application was of great merit.

The roof terrace would open up a fantastic new view of the West Front of
the Cathedral and wider views of the City.

Access to such a view would be maximised. It deserved to be celebrated.

8



Lincoln Cathedral was at the top of the list of Cathedral’s to visit in the
country.

He was disappointed there had not been a site visit by Planning
Committee members prior to this evening to give visual context to this
application.

Potential issues related to noise/disturbance had been mitigated by the
offer of conditions.

Why were potential issues mentioned which could be conditioned?

The scheme would give the opportunity to local residents and visitors to
enjoy a different prospective of the iconic front of Lincoln Cathedral.

The application was in similar spirit to Lincolnshire County Council’s
investment at the Castle to allow people to walk along the Castle walls.

He felt the officer recommendation to refuse planning permission was a
negative approach.

He welcomed the planning application.

Mr Paul Ponwaye addressed Planning Committee as agent on behalf of the
applicant in support of the proposed planning application. He covered the
following main points:

The applicant had provided significant investment in the White Hart Hotel
and other properties in uphill Lincoln.

The addition of the fourth floor roof terrace would put the premises on the
international stage in terms of the final piece in the puzzle for the
enhancement of the White Hart.

The new terrace would offer outstanding views of the Castle, Cathedral
and Witham Valley.

The Cathedral had supported the scheme.

Conditions would be imposed to reduce any potential impact of the
development.

Views of the Council’'s Pollution Control Officer had concluded that with
controls in place, there would be no impact on the adjacent Church of St
Mary Magdalene.

Concerns raised by the City Conservation Officer related to the modern
balustrade, however the most appropriate contemporary option had been
chosen as it was frameless and transparent.

The illustrative computer generated images provided showed that
interrupted views of the Castle walls and Cathedral would be minimal.

The incongruous water tower would be removed which already impacted
on the Castle and Cathedral.

The roof terrace would not be a bar terrace as clarified within the officer's
report.

Activity at roof level would add to the interest of the views.

Leaving extra space in front of the flat roof enhanced the heritage aspect.
There would be substantial benefits allowing this premier hotel to be a
crowning glory with unique views from the roof terrace.

The terrace would be used by international employers such as Siemens,
universities, Lincoln City Football Club to name a few.

He requested that planning permission be granted.

Members discussed the content of the report in further detail.

The following comments emerged in relation to the proposed planning
application:

9



The Cathedral had supported the proposals for the roof terrace. The
member in question was not sure why officer's had spoken in their
presentation to the contrary.

Shop owners supported the proposals.

Lincolnshire County Council as Highways Authority had no objections.
Local councillors were in support of the scheme.

The City wanted to see increased tourism and to encourage international
character. The proposals should be supported, similar to York’s reputation.
This was an innovative, reasonable and ambitious proposal that should be
supported.

The development was centred in the uphill part of the city of which we
were all proud and had a huge potential.

The development would have a positive impact on the building.

The flat roof was currently under-utilised although the views from it were
stunning.

The use of a glass balustrade made sense in terms of the sensitivity of the
views.

The condition to control the number of patrons on the roof terrace and
music levels between the hours of 8am and 11pm was not necessary.

The Cathedral would prefer accessibility to the roof terrace to be restricted
till 11.00pm, not 11.30pm. This would be in line in with the operational
hours of the Magna Carta in Castle Hill square.

Peoples views would differ in relation to the impact from the roof terrace as
to whether it would be detrimental to the views from the Castle walls. It
was pleasing to note that the water tower would be demolished.

This was a difficult application which officers had spent many long hours in
deliberation. The applicant wished to add something modern to a historic
building, and visual amenity would be affected, however, was this of
sufficient detriment to refuse.

The Uphill area was very special with a different atmosphere to other parts
of the city, however, with mitigation measures in place we would still
maintain this atmosphere with the addition of the roof terrace.

The statement within the Design and Access Statement submitted, that the
proposal enabled employment opportunities to be maintained was a threat
to Councillors implying we would make employees redundant should
planning permission be refused.

The acoustic atmosphere and calm presence of the Uphill area in this core
heritage area was surreal. Should planning permission be granted there
was a worry that a precedent would be set for future development. There
was a noise level concern.

There was tension here between progress and preservation of the
area/supporting the local economy.

There were concerns regarding potential impact on the adjacent Church
of St Mary Magdalene next door and access for maintenance.

Mitigation measures were proposed to address potential noise pollution.
We would not know until the roof terrace was established what degree of
impact there would be.

Historic England were experienced consultees in these types of proposals.
The Cathedral had issued a bland response to the consultation process in
that it did not welcome music or drinking but did not object to the
proposals.

The Uphill are was a unique area to sit and contemplate.

10



e It was important for the White Hart Hotel to prosper, however, our amazing
and important views needed to be considered also.

The following questions were raised in relation to the planning application:

e Was it possible to protect the stonework of the building by using alternative
materials to glass?

e Would a site visit been useful from the Castle walls to look at the height of
objects placed on the flat roof and impact on views?

e Could a condition be imposed to limit the height of objects placed on the
roof?

e How had the potential concerns of noise impact to the adjacent Church of
St Mary Magdalene been addressed?

e Would there be a disabled access in addition to internal steps up to the
roof terrace?

e Clarity was requested as to whether the balustrade would be set back on
the roof terrace and in line with the White Hart building next to it

¢ Would the balustrade be the same height as the existing water tower to be
demolished?

¢ What would be the width of the gravel perimeter?

e It was assumed that any furniture would be taken off the roof terrace at the
end of the evening, timing would be needed for this to avoid noise. Would
people be able to report any issues with noise being carried?

e There was no mention of lighting in the planning documents, Would it spill
onto the path?

e Could clarification be given to the response detailed on the Update Sheet
raising concerns that the application was not publicly advertised outside
the building?

The Chair reminded members of their remit here. They held a massive
responsibility to the citizens of Lincoln in protecting our historic heritage which
must not be compromised. There was a balance to be drawn as to whether the
negative impacts outweighed the benefits of the scheme, and vice-versa. Modern
and ancient could work together, but not if an area we enjoyed was
compromised. Each member must weigh up the information presented to us and
come to a balanced decision based on that information. Professional officers
were here to guide us. Should we go against their advice, we would need to
justify why we had done so.

The Assistant Director of Planning offered the following points of clarification:

¢ He confirmed that he did not say that the Cathedral had objected within his
presentation.

e In terms of the materials proposed to be used on the balustrade, the
decision to be made was to refuse or approve the planning application as it
was before members this evening.

e The height of objects to be placed on the roof was not a matter that could
be enforced by the Planning Authority.

e Regulation of the placement of lights, umbrellas etc on the roof terrace
was also not within the remit of the Planning Committee. Portable lighting
placed on the roof terrace was not development and not enforceable.

e Noise issues: There were two parts to consider:

11



o An assessment of potential noise in relation to impact on amenity.
Would this be harmful as a statutory nuisance? The Pollution
Control Officer said not.

o The level of impact on the adjacent Church of St Mary Magdalene
or properties onto Minster Yard. Noise from the roof terrace would
be new to this part of the Conservation Area,
problematic/detrimental to the Conservation Area and Scheduled
Monument.

e The balustrade would be set back 600mm from the wall. Its height would
be 1.5metres, which was lower than the existing water tower.

e In terms of the Cathedral response regarding times of operation, that type
of detail to be applied was within the remit of Planning Committee
members to determine should the application be supported.

e The consultation process was carried out in September last year, and
advertised according to full statutory regulations.

e In terms of setting a precedent, each planning application was considered
on its own merits., However, the establishment of a particular development
would not be immaterial to future development.in the area. The weight to
be applied in this respect would be the remit of officers to advise upon and
for Planning Committee members to decide.

e Disabled access: The inclusion of steps to the roof terrace were part of the
Listed Building Consent and not the subject of the full application. There
would only be steps which was not unusual for a listed building.

Whether or not the planning application was granted, a motion was proposed,
seconded, and put to the vote that hours of operation for the roof terrace be set at
8.00pm- 11.00pm. The motion was carried.

RESOLVED that planning permission be refused on the grounds of:

e The proposed glass balustrade would have no meaningful relationship with
the prevailing architectural language of the grade Il listed White Hart Hotel,
causing harm to the significance of the historic facade;

e The proposed glass balustrade, along with the activity, noise and lighting
associated with the use of the roof as an external terrace, would be a
modern and incongruous addition. It would not relate well to the site and
would fail to reflect or satisfactorily assimilate into the surrounding area,
contrary to CLLP Policy S53.

e It would diminish and harm the architectural significance of this designated
heritage asset, contrary to CLLP Policy S57 and NPPF paragraph 212.

e The proposed glass balustrade, along with the activity, noise and lighting
associated with the use of the roof as an external terrace would cause
harm to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and
would fail to respect the special historic context, contrary to CLLP Policies
S57 and S58 and paragraphs 212 and 213 of the NPPF.

e The proposed glass balustrade, along with the activity, noise and lighting
associated with the use of the roof as an external terrace would have a
negative impact on the roofscape within important views towards the
Cathedral, harming the setting of this Grade | listed building. For the same
reason the proposal would also cause harm to the setting of a number of
other listed buildings in the vicinity. The application would therefore be
contrary to CLLP Policies S53, S57 and S58 and paragraphs 212 and 213
of the NPPF.

e The less than substantial harm which would be caused to the significance
of the heritage assets had _nL%t been justified in terms of the tests set out



within paragraph 215 of the NPPF and was not outweighed by a public
benefit, providing an external terrace allowing private members of the hotel
to take advantage of views, but in doing so compromised these same
views from the public realm; and

The proposal failed to have special regard to the desirability of preserving
the building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic
interest which it possessed and was therefore contrary to the duty
contained within sections 66 (1) and 72 (1) of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas Act).

(b) White Hart Hotel, Bailgate, Lincoln (Listed Building Consent)

The Assistant Director of Planning:

a.

referred to the application property, the White Hart Hotel, a grade Il listed
building, located on the corner with Bailgate and Eastgate within the
Cathedral and City Centre Conservation Area

reported that it sat on the corner of Bailgate and Eastgate with St. Mary
Magdelene’s Parish Church (the church) adjoined to the south; the site
was abutted to the rear, east and south, by residential properties; 19-23
Minster Yard, Exchequergate Lodge and 24 Eastgate

detailed the City Council’s Principal Conservation Officer's description of
the history of The White Hart Hotel, being a complicated site comprising
four distinct building phases along the street scene

advised that the hotel had recently reopened following extensive
renovation works with some works still ongoing, there had been a number
of applications, including most recently for the creation of a new leisure
pool and spa, which was approved by Members of Planning Committee in
July 2024

advised that this application sought listed building consent for a new
external roof terrace on the flat roof of the 1960s extension which fronted
Bailgate

reported that the application would include a frameless glass balustrade,
glazed screen, and access doors, with access taken from the existing
fourth floor private lounge accommodation, where it was proposed to
install new internal steps and a balustrade from the existing lounge to
accommodate the change in levels

added that the application also proposed the removal of the existing steel
balcony to the south/east elevation and removal of the roof mounted water
tower

highlighted that a roof terrace was previously proposed on the flat roof
area to the rear, east of the building as part of the original applications for
internal and external refurbishment works (2023/0057/FUL and
2023/0058/LBC), however the terrace was later omitted from the
applications following advice from officers that this was not an appropriate
addition

added that officers had concerns that this would cause harm to the setting
of the listed building and adjacent listed buildings as well as views towards
13



the Cathedral, the character and appearance of the conservation area and
residential amenity

reported that despite this and subsequent advice, the agent has submitted
this current application for a terrace on an alternative location, to the side
of the building, adjacent to Bailgate

advised that in addition to this listed building consent application, an
accompanying application for full planning permission had been submitted
(2024/0617/FUL) and considered by Planning Committee as the previous
agenda item this evening

confirmed that this listed building consent application considered the
proposals, including any internal alterations, in relation to the impact on the
application property as a designated heritage asset

. confirmed that both applications were being presented to Members of the
Planning Committee for determination at the request of Councillor Murray

. highlighted that responses had been received from the church and the
Cathedral Estates Department in relation to both the full and listed building
consent applications, however, as the comments raised related to visual
amenity, residential amenity and noise and disturbance, they could not be
considered as part of this application i.e. they related to matters other than
the impact on the application property as a designated heritage asset and
their responses were therefore copied and considered as part of the
assessment of the full planning permission report

. detailed the history to the application site within the officer’s report
. provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows:

e Policy S57: The Historic Environment
e National Planning Policy Framework
e Planning Practice Guidance- Historic Environment

. advised of the issues to be assessed in relation to the planning application,
as follows:

e Policy Context
¢ Impact on the Building as a Designated Heritage Asset
e Assessment of Public Benefit

outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise
concluded that:

e Officers recommended that the application be refused on the
grounds that the proposed glass balustrade and the use of the
existing flat roof as an external terrace would cause unacceptable
harm to the architectural and historic interest of the building and to
its setting and significance.

e The level of less than substantial harm had neither been
appropriately justified1n40r was it outweighed by a public benefit.



e The application would therefore be contrary to CLLP Policy S57 and
the NPPF.

Members discussed the content of the report in further detail.

Members asked whether approval of this Listed Building Consent application
would be helpful to the applicant should an amended revised full planning
application be submitted.

The Assistant Director of Planning advised that Listed Building Consent
application approval needed to be based on the specific material implications in
front of us this evening.

Members asked whether a new application could be submitted.

The Principal Planning Officer and the Principal Conservation Officer advised that
this same Listed Building application could be resubmitted with a revised full
application. If there were no reasons for refusal it would still stand against the
same policies, unless there was a change in planning policy in the meantime.

RESOLVED that the listed building consent planning application be refused on
the grounds of:

e The glass balustrade would have no meaningful relationship with the
prevailing architectural language of the grade Il listed White Hart Hotel,
causing harm to the significance of the historic facade;

e The glass balustrade, along with the activity, noise and lighting associated
with the use of the roof as an external terrace, would be a modern and
incongruous addition which would diminish and harm the architectural
significance of this designated heritage asset;

e The proposal would be prejudicial to the special architectural and historic
interest of the listed building, its significance and setting, contrary to CLLP
Policy S57 and NPPF paragraphs 212 and 213;

e The less than substantial harm which would be caused to the significance
of the listed building had not been justified in terms of the tests set out
within paragraph 215 of the NPPF and was not outweighed by a public
benefit, providing an external terrace for use by private members of the
hotel; and

e The proposal failed to have special regard to the desirability of preserving
the building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic
interest which it possessed and was therefore contrary to the duty
contained within section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas Act).

15



This page is intentionally blank.



[tem No. 4
PLANNING COMMITTEE 26 FEBRUARY 2025

SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 188

DIRECTORATE: COMMUNITIES AND ENVIRONMENT

REPORT AUTHOR: KIERON MANNING, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR - PLANNING

1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

Purpose of Report

To have confirmed one (temporary) Tree Preservation Order, made by the
Assistant Director of Planning under delegated powers. The order currently
provides 6 months of temporary protection for the trees but is required to be
confirmed by the Planning Committee to provide long term future protection.

Executive Summary

A Tree Preservation Order gives statutory protection to trees that contribute to the
amenity, natural heritage or attractiveness and character of a locality.

The making of any Tree Preservation Order is likely to result in further demands
on staff time to deal with any applications submitted for consent to carry out tree
work and to provide advice and assistance to owners and others regarding
protected trees. This is, however, contained within existing staffing resources.

The making of Tree Preservation Orders reduces the risk of losing important trees,
groups of trees and woodlands. It further allows the Council to protect trees that
contribute to local environment quality.

Background

Tree Preservation Order 188 was made on 07" October 2024 protecting 2 Acer
Pseudoplatanus (Sycamore) within the grounds of Pottergate Lodge, Lindum
Road, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN2 1NS.

The trees are considered to contribute to the visual amenity of the area and the
unauthorised removal of, or works to, the trees would be considered to be
detrimental to visual amenity.

The initial 6 months of protection would end for the Tree Preservation Order on 7
April 2025.

Consideration
The provisional Tree Preservation Order was made following an application to fell
the 2 trees, which are located within Cathedral and City Centre No.1 Conservation

Area.

The Councils Arboricultural Officer visited the site to inspect the trees and using
the Arboricultural Association approved ‘Helliwell System’ of Visual Amenity of

17




5.1

6.1

71

Trees and Woodlands, considers the trees to be of high amenity value. The trees
were both in full leaf, showed no signs of dieback, pests or diseases and were
mechanically balanced at the time of their visit.

Consultations have been carried out with both the landowner and an adjoining
property and no objections to the order have been received.

Strategic Priorities

Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order 188 would ensure that the trees would
not be removed or worked on without the express permission of the Council which
would be considered detrimental to visual amenity and as such the protection of
the trees would contribute to enhancing our remarkable place.

Organisational Impacts

Legal Implications — Anyone who wishes to carry out works to the tree will require
consent from the City of Lincoln Council first.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Tree Preservation Order be confirmed without

modification and that delegated authority be granted to the Assistant Director of
Planning to carry out the requisite procedures for confirmation.

How many appendices does

the report contain? None
List of Background Papers: None
Lead Officer: Kieron Manning, Assistant Director - Planning

Kieron.manning@lincoln.gov.uk

18


mailto:Kieron.manning@lincoln.gov.uk

UNION ROAD

Hilton House

[~® Crown copyrigh’l and database rights 21024 Olrdnanc? .I'Eiurvey AC0000849975.

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 (as amended)
Hilton Lodge No.1 Tree Preservation Order 2024

T1 - Purpurea

CITY OF
@ Lincoln
COUNCIL

City Hall,
Beaumont Fee,
Lincoln,

LN1 1DD

Website: www.lincoln.gov.uk

Scale: 1:500 at A4

Version 1: 18-Apr-2024

19



20



21



22



[tem No. 5a

Application Number: | 2025/0029/C4

Site Address: 15 St Andrews Drive, Lincoln

Target Date: 20th March 2025

Agent Name: None

Applicant Name: Miss Esther Ogedengbe

Proposal: Change of use from existing Dwelling (Class C3) to flexible use
between Dwelling (Class C3) and House in Multiple Occupancy
(Class C4).

Background - Site Location and Description

The application property is a two storey dwelling located on the South side of St Andrews
Drive. The property is currently a 5 bedroom dwellinghouse.

The application seeks permission for the change of use from an existing dwelling (C3) to a
flexible use between a Dwelling (C3) and a House in Multiple Occupation (C4).

A city wide Article 4 Direction was adopted from the 1st March 2016 removing the permitted
change from C3 to C4, necessitating the formal requirement for planning permission for this
change of use. The Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) provides criteria for
determining planning applications for the development of HMOs.

It is noted that the applicant previously applied for a HMO use for the property in 2022, but
later withdrew the application after being advised that marketing information was required.

This application has been brought to the Planning Committee due to the number of
objections received from neighbouring residents.

Site History
Reference: Description Status Decision Date:
2022/0845/C4 Change of use from C3 | Withdrawn 28th April 2023
(Dwellinghouse) to C4
(HMO).

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 6th February 2025.

Policies Referred to

National Planning Policy Framework

Supplementary Planning Document - Houses in Multiple Occupation
Policy S25: Sub-division and Multi-Occupation of Dwellings within Lincoln
Policy S53: Design and Amenity

Issues

To consider whether the application meets the requirements of the Houses in Multiple
Occupation Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and Local Plan Policy.

To assess the proposal with regard to:

23




1) Accordance with National and Local Planning Policy
2) HMO Concentration

3) Marketing Considerations

4) Impact on Residential Amenity

5) Impact on Visual Amenity

6) Parking and Highway Safety

7) Cycle and Bin Storage

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted January 2023.

Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee Comment

John Lincolnshire Police Comments Received
Council Tax Comments Received
Highways & Planning Comments Received
Environmental Health Comments Received

Public Consultation Responses

24



Name

Address

Mr Chris Chamberlain

9 St Andrews Drive
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN6 7UG

Mr Cal Dunnington

6 Saint Andrew's Drive
Lincoln
LN6 7UG

Miss Teresa Robinson

19

St Andrews Drive
Lincoln

LN6 7UG

Miss Diane Marsh

9 St Andrews Drive
Lincoln
LN6 7UG

Mr Ross Morgan

18 St Andrews Drive
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 7UG

Mrs Karen Revill

22 St Andrews Drive
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 7UG

Mrs Patrycja Mikolajczyk

14 St Andrews Drive
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 7UG

Miss Rosie Fairweather

17 St Andrews Drive
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 7UG

Mrs Judith Jones

Beck Hole

32 St Andrews Drive
Lincoln

LN6 7UG

Mr Huw Burrows

20 St Andrews Drive
Lincoln
LN6 7UG

Miss Gemma Marshall

21 St Andrew's Drive
Lincoln
LN6 7UG

Darryl Canaday

11 St Andrews Drive
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 7UG

25




Mr John Hopkins

25 St Andrews Drive
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 7UG

Mrs Ann Hogan

13 St Andrews Drive
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 7UG

Mrs Ann Hogan

13 St Andrews Drive
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 7UG

Mrs Patrycja Mikolajczyk

14 St. Andrews Drive
Lincoln
Ln6 7ug

Tom Clayton

1 St Andrews Drive
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN6 7UG

Mrs Christine Chester

30 St Andrews Drive
Lincoln
LN6 7UG

Mr Renton Foster

16 St Andrews Drive
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 7UG

Miss Rosie Fairweather

28 Valley Road
Lincoln
LN5 9BE

Consideration

1) Accordance with National and Local Planning Policy

Policies S53 'Design and Amenity' and S25 'Subdivision and Multi-occupation of Dwellings
within Lincoln' of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (Adopted April 2023) are relevant to

this application.

The relevant parts of the policies state:

"All development, including extensions and alterations to existing buildings, must achieve
high quality sustainable design that contributes positively to local character, landscape and
townscape, and supports diversity, equality and access for all. All development proposals
will be assessed against, and will be expected to meet, the following relevant design and

amenity criteria. All development proposals will:

26




7. Uses

a) Create or contribute to a variety of complementary uses that meet the needs of the
community;

b) Be compatible with neighbouring land uses and not result in likely conflict with existing
uses unless it can be satisfactorily demonstrated that both the ongoing use of the
neighbouring site will not be compromised, and that the amenity of occupiers of the new
development will be satisfactory with the ongoing normal use of the neighbouring site;

c) Not result in adverse noise and vibration taking into account surrounding uses nor result
in adverse impacts upon air quality from

odour, fumes, smoke, dust and other sources;

8. Homes and Buildings

a) Provide homes with good quality internal environments with adequate space for users
and good access to private, shared or public spaces;

b) Be adaptable and resilient to climate change and be compatible with achieving a net zero
carbon Central Lincolnshire as required by

Policies S6, S7 and S8;

c) Be capable of adapting to changing needs of future occupants and be cost effective to
run by achieving the standards set out in Policy S20;

d) Not result in harm to people's amenity either within the proposed development or
neighbouring it through overlooking, overshadowing, loss of light or increase in artificial light
or glare;

e) Provide adequate storage, waste, servicing and utilities for the use proposed; ..."

- Extract from Policy S53.

Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (CLLP) Policy S25 advises that the changes of use to
houses in multi-occupation will be supported where:

- the existing dwelling is capable of conversion without causing harm to the amenities
of future occupants, neighbours and the wider area;

- it can be demonstrated that there is an established lack of demand for the single
family use of the property;

- the development will not lead to or increase an existing over-concentration of such
uses in the area; and

- adequate provision is made for external communal areas, bin storage and collection
and on-site parking and cycle storage.

On-site parking and cycle storage may not be necessary if it can be demonstrated that the
site is sustainably located on a regular bus route or within walking distance of the City
Centre. Applications for student accommodation should have university/college facilities
accessible by walking, cycling and public transport.

The SPD outlines the criteria that will be used to determine planning applications for HMOs
in the City. The purpose of this, and the Article 4 direction, is not to restrict the supply of
HMOs, rather they are intended to manage their future development. This should ensure
such developments will not lead to or increase an existing over concentration of HMOs,
which are considered harmful to local communities, or result in the loss of properties from
the market where there is a demand for their use as a dwellinghouse.

The SPD also advises that flexible conditions will be used to allow the lawful use of the
property to change between C3 and C4 for a specified period, up to a maximum of 10 years.
This gives landlords and property owners the ability to respond to changing local housing
market circumstances by letting their properties as either dwelling houses or HMOs, without

27



the need to apply for planning permission.

Paragraph 8 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) outlines the three
overarching objectives of sustainable development and, as part of the social objective, it
should be ensured that there is a sufficient number and range of homes that meet the needs
of present and future generations, and this is accompanied by Planning Practice Guidance
(PPG), including Paragraph 62 which refers to the need for differing types of housing: "Within
this context, the size, type and tenure of housing needed for different groups in the
community should be assessed and reflected in planning policies (including, but not limited
to, those who require affordable housing, families with children, older people, students,
people with disabilities, service families, travellers, people who rent their homes and people
wishing to commission or build their own homes)".

2) HMO Concentration

The City Council applies a 10% maximum concentration of HMOs threshold to a 100m radius
for the purposes of assessing the impact of a proposed HMO development. HMO
developments that would increase an existing overconcentration of HMOs within a defined
100 radius, i.e. exceed the 10% threshold, will generally be considered inappropriate. The
purpose of this is to ensure that there is not an over- concentration of HMO uses which can
lead to an imbalance in residential communities. In this particular instance there are no other
HMOs within a 100m radius of the application site.

The SPD also requires that the proposal should not result in a smaller concentration of HMO
uses, specifically from three adjacent HMOs. This does not occur in this case as both
properties adjoining are not HMO's.

The SPD document also states that "In cases where planning permission is required to
change the use of a C3 dwelling house to a C4 HMO and where members of the Planning
Committee are minded to approve an application, the use of a flexible planning condition to
allow the lawful use of the property to change between C4 and C3 for a specified period of
time after planning approval is given will be considered. Giving landlords and property
owners the ability to respond to changing local housing market circumstances by letting their
properties as either single family dwelling houses or HMOs, without the need to apply for
planning permission."

The Council has set the maximum period for this flexible planning use at 10 years, after
which the occupied use would become the lawful use, unless the applicant was to apply for
a new planning permission to continue the flexible use.

Officers are satisfied that the principle of allowing the flexible use of the property between
C3 and C4 use would not therefore have an unduly harmful impact on the overall balance
of the community.

3) Marketing and other Considerations

The SPD also considers harm caused from the loss of family homes to HMOs. The SPD
also states that proposals comprising the conversion of an existing residential property to
an HMO must demonstrate there is an established lack of demand for the single family use
of the property concerned, based on local housing market circumstances at the time.

The SPD outlines that evidence that the property has been openly marketed at a reasonable

28



purchase or rental price for a period of at least six months shall be submitted with the
application and verified by a suitable person in a relevant profession, such as an estate
agent.

The applicant has submitted marketing evidence which indicates that the property was
marketed for a reasonable period of time (minimum 6 months). The email from the estate
agent confirms that the property has been on the market at a reasonable market value both
for a rental and for sale for over 6 months with little interest, the price advertised for both
rental and sale has been dropped several times during this period. As such the applicant is
seeking the flexible use change to C3/C4 to try to gain more interest for the property. We
understand that the property was not sold or let during this period of marketing.

Officers therefore consider that the sufficient evidence has been submitted to confirm that
there is currently a lack of demand for this property in this area.

4) Impact on Residential Amenity

We consider that the change of use would not result in significant impact, retaining its
residential use, albeit with a flexible use to all occupation by unrelated individuals rather than
a single family unit if required. No external alterations are proposed. There is evidence of
properties operating throughout the city with a flexible C3/C4 use in residential areas without
causing significant harm to the neighbouring area.

The proposal for the flexible use responds to the current demand and would contribute to a
variety of complementary uses that meet the needs of the community. The flexible use is
considered compatible with neighbouring land uses and is not likely to conflict with existing
uses.

The City Council's Environmental Health Officer confirms that he has no objections to make
in regard to noise or other environmental impact and therefore has raised no objection to
the application.

Officers are therefore satisfied that the proposal would not be unduly harmful to the
amenities of neighbouring uses, those in the wider area or the future occupants, in
accordance with CLLP Policies LP26 and LP37.

5) Impact on Visual Amenity

The change of use would not result in any changes to the external appearance of the
dwelling and would not therefore result in any impact on visual amenity.

The proposals would therefore be in accordance with the requirements of CLLP Policy S53.
6) Parking and Highway Safety

The property has the benefit of two off street parking spaces as well as being sustainably
located on a regular bus route and within walking distance of the City Centre and local

services, shops, and facilities.

The sustainable location would therefore meet the requirements of CLLP, and accordingly
officers have no objection.

29



Lincolnshire County Council as Local Highway Authority has commented that the site is
located in a central urban area where services and facilities are within a reasonable distance
to be accessed via sustainable travel options such as walking, cycling and public transport.
Future residents of the development will not be reliant on the private car and therefore the
limited parking at the property is considered acceptable. They accordingly do not wish to
restrict the grant of planning permission.

7) External Communal Space and Bin Storage

The property benefits from a front and rear garden space to facilitate the storage of bins and
cycles, ensuring that the proposal meets the requirements of Policy S25.

Comments from Neighbouring Properties

The application has received a number of objections from neighbouring properties.

The objections were around parking, water pressure, waste and rubbish, noise, safety of
people walking to/from the school, need for a family dwelling, market price advertising and
inaccurate information given as part of the application.

In regard to inaccurate information given to the planning authority, within the application
form the applicant has stated the property has been vacant for 6 months, while the
neighbours state this is untrue and there have been two people renting the property up until
December 2024. Regardless of if there was a tenant or family living in the property or not,
the Local Policy and SPD requirements are for the property to be advertised at market value
for a period of 6 months or more, not to be empty. The property has been advertised for a
period of over 6 months on social media platforms, major online selling platforms including
Zoopla, Rightmove and Onthemarket.com and by a local Estate Agent.

Some objections state that the advertised rental and for sale price are too high and not at
market value, however the price has been lowered throughout the marketing period and has
not been let or sold.

The house was originally brought by the applicant in 2022 for £290,000 and is being
advertised for sale at £280,000. This seems to be a fair market value for similar 5 bedroom
properties. In St Andrews Drive, as well as the three adjacent roads, there are no other 5
bedroom properties which have been sold recently, however there are a number of 2 and 3
bed semi-detached dwellings, sold within the last three years, for between £210,000 -
£239,000. Therefore £280,000 for a 5 bedroom property in this area is a reasonable market
for sale price, and has been advised as such by the Estate Agent.

In terms of rental price, the application originally has the property advertised for £1800pcm
however has since dropped this to £1600pcm. Again, this is not considered unreasonable
for a 5 bedroom property in this area. At the time of the application there are properties
within 1 mile of the application property for similar rental prices with 3 bed family rentals
starting from £1100pcm. Again, the price of the rental was advised by the Estate Agent.

Officers therefore consider that the property valuation is considered reasonable for the
property and area.

While the area is currently comprised of family dwellings, the application is for a flexible use

30



to better respond to changing markets, and the use as a C4 HMO would not result in likely
conflict with existing neighbouring uses. There is a lack of interest in the property, and the
applicant has demonstrated that the property has been marketed for the required time
without interest as specified by the Local plan and SPD document.

With regard to parking, there are two off-street parking spaces provided at the property which
would be considered appropriate for a C3 or C4 use. As previously stated Lincolnshire
County Council as Local Highway Authority has commented that the site is located in a
central urban area where services and facilities are within a reasonable distance to be
accessed via sustainable travel options such as walking, cycling and public transport. Future
residents of the development will not be reliant on the private car and therefore the limited
parking at the property is considered acceptable.

The property is on a road with footpaths either side, therefore children walking to and from
school have the benefit of utilising footpaths to remain safe from the traffic, the change of
use of the property to a flexible C3/C4 use is not considered to add significant amounts of
trip generation and traffic to cause a safety issue to those walking in the area. Again, the
Highway Authority has raised no objection to the application.

Water pressure for the street is not a planning policy consideration, however the property is
existing and therefore would not create additional accommodation or strain on the water
pressure.

In regard to the rubbish, many of the comments relate to the rubbish 'spilling out' onto the
street as it would not be properly managed by potential tenants, however this again is not a
planning consideration and would relate to PPASB. In terms of planning, it can be
demonstrated that there is sufficient space at the property to accommodate bins for waste
and rubbish collection.

Many of the objections also relate to additional noise from a C4 use and have stated that
previous tenants of the property have caused noise issues, including talking loudly and
making phone calls. In terms of HMO use, it is not expected that noise from tenants living in
a property would be so significant as to warrant a refusal of the planning application, and
the Council's Environmental Health officers has stated he has no objection to the proposal
in terms of noise or environmental impacts. While it is possible that there could be loud noise
created from someone living at the property this is not limited to C4 use and is equally true
of a loud family which could use the property under C3 use, given the above any loud noise
from voices or phone calls would fall under anti-social behaviour rather than planning remit,
and therefore should not be a reason to warrant refusal of the flexible use.

Application Negotiated either at Pre-Application or During Process of Application

Yes, pre-application discussion to gather required evidence for submission of application.

Financial Implications

None.

Legal Implications

None.

31



Equality Implications

None.
Conclusion

The application has demonstrated that the property has a lack of demand as a family
dwellinghouse currently and its change of use to allow a flexible use between a
Dwellinghouse or a HMO would not result in an unduly harmful impact on the overall balance
of the community, residential or visual amenity, in accordance with Policies S25 and S53 of
the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan and the Supplementary Planning Document.

There will not be a harmful effect on visual amenity and the property provides adequate
provision for external communal areas for amenity, cycle storage and bin storage for either
the use as a dwelling or a HMO.

It is therefore considered that the flexible use of the property is acceptable and would be in
accordance with the requirements of Local Plan Policy, the SPD and guidance contained
within the NPPF.

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That the application is Granted Conditionally
Standard Conditions

01) The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning
with the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

02) With the exception of the detailed matters referred to by the conditions of this consent,
the development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
drawings listed within Table A below.

The works shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on the approved
plans and in any other approved documents forming part of the application.

Reason: To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the approved
plans.

03) The C4 (Houses in Multiple Occupation) use is permitted to change from C4 to C3
(Dwellinghouses) and back again to C4 without the need for a further application for
planning permission for an unlimited number of times for a period limited to ten years
hence from the date of this permission.

Reason: In order that the owner can reasonably respond to local housing market
circumstances for a period of ten years.

32



Conditions to be discharged before commencement of works
None.
Conditions to be discharged before use is implemented

None.

Conditions to be adhered to at all times

None.

Table A

The above recommendation has been made in accordance with the submitted drawings
identified below:

Drawing No. Version | Drawing Type Date Received
Location Plan 22nd January 2025
Floor Plans - Existing 21st January 2025

33



This page is intentionally blank.



Supporting evidence

from zoopla.com

Rental evidence:

£1 ,600 pCm (£369 pw)

See if you could afford to buy

Property timeline

Reduced

Increased

Increased

Reduced

Listed

November 2024

November 2024

December 2024

January 2025

September 2024

e g

35

£1.699 pcm
-£99 (5.5%)

£1,700 pcm
£1(< 01%)

£1,800 pcm
£100 (5.9%)

£1,600 pcm
-£200 (11.1%)

£1,798 pcm



Marketing evidence:

Offers over

£28 0,0 00 emeisa.t

Chn b mmriinh Tanodd haseas

Property timeline

Listed = September 2024

Listed ' June 2024

k= 5beds [ 3 baths (LA 2 receptions
- . <

Sold ' March 2022

Listed ' July 2021

k= 5beds [ 2baths () 2 receptions

36

£280,000

£300,000

£290,000

£295,000



Email from Estate Agents:

Fwd: 15 St Andrews drive, LN6 7UG

To @ Jessica White
[ J
i ) You replied to this message on 28/01/2025 10:44.
HiJassica,

Please sea emsil from estate agent below.

Thanks
Esther

Date: Mon, 27 Jan 2025 at 16:05
Subject: 15 St Andrews drive, LN 7UG
To:l

Hi Esther,

Thank you for your emsil.

We can confirm that the property at 15 St Andrews Drive, LNG 7UG has been actively marketed by Bumnett and Lee since 17th Juna 2024 till date.
The property has been advertised on our website at  ressonable open market price for both purchase and rental purpose.

Please find below the link to the listing for your reference:

Should you require any further details regarding the markating activities undertaken, plaase do not hesitste to contact us.

Kind regards,
Bumett and Lee

Neil Arnold

Managing Director

D 0333 034 2130

M 0333 305 0048

E neil.arnold@burnett-lee.co

Bl]RNETT & lJEE W www.burnett-lee.co.uk

PROPE ' CONSULTANTS

rightmove @rTheMarket... ZOOpIA

Disclaimer the message contains confidential information and is intended only for the use of the stated recipient. If you are not the intendad recipient you are hereby notified that arry dissemination, distribution, or copying is stnctly prohibited. Please notify Bumett & Lee immexiately
by e-mad if you have received this o-mad by mistake and delete this ¢-mad from your system. E-mad transmssion cannot be guaranteed 1 be secure of ermor-free. Bumett and Lee, theretore, does not acoept kabilty for any emoes or omissions in the contents of this message, Further
even if this e-mail contans an expression of intent, any communication contained in this e-mail is subject to contract and is not legally binding

37



harketing Evidencs

ESimiIar porarpeerti e, sodd locally:

13, Brancaster Drive, Lincoln, Lincolnshire LNG TUF 8. 5t Andrews Drive, Lincoln, Lincainshire LME TUG

[ semi-Detaches By 2z @), Freehoia (0 semi-Detached P33 & Freenold
20 Dc 2022 £235,000 30 Sep 2024 £237,500
4Dec 1958 I £51,000 16 Apr 2003 £94,000

View +] more

() semi-Detachea  pg 5 @) Freenoig G SemiDetached  Pg 3 @ Freehold

21 Jun 2024 £222,000
215ep 2023 £239,950
21 Dwc 2011 £130,000
12 Jun 2000 £54,000
Vigw +] more
Yiew =] more

24, Bristol Drive, Lincoln, Lincolnshire LNE TUE

(D Semi-Detaches g 3 @ Freehold

3 Jun 2024 £210,000
3 May 2016 E153,000
Mipw =3 e

38



Consultee Comments for Planning Application 2025/0029/C4

Application Summary

Application Mumber: 2025/0029/C4

Address: 15 5t Andrews Drive Lincoln Lincolnshire LNG TUG

Proposal: Change of use from existing Dwelling (Class C3) to flexible use between Dwelling
(Class C3) and House in Multiple Occupancy (Class C4).

Case Officer: Jess White

Consultee Details

Name: Mr lan Wicks

Address: Directorate Of Development And Environmental Services, City Hall, Beaumont Fee
Lincoln, Lincolnshire LMN1 1DF

Email: Mot Available

On Behalf Of Environmental Health

Comments

| confirm that | have no observations to make regarding noise or other environmental impact over
and above those contained in the Councils Aricle 4 Direction for HMOs and associated
Supplementary Planning Document.

39



Lincolnshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL’S RESPONSE TO
CONSULTATION
ON THE FOLLOWING DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL

District: Lincoln City Council

Application number: 2025/0029/C4

Application Type:

Proposal: Change of use from existing Dwelling (Class C3) to flexible use between Dwelling
(Class C3) and House in Multiple Occupancy (Class C4).

Location: 15 St Andrews Drive, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN& 7UG

Response Date: 10 February 2025

This report includes the Substantive response of the Local Highway and Lead Local Flood
Authority to a planning consultation received under the Development Management Order
and includes details of any planning conditions or informatives that should be attached in the
event that permission is granted and any obligations to be secured by way of a 5106
agreement.

General Information and Advice

Please note that although the Definitive Map and Statement proves the existence of any
recorded rights of way, there may be further or higher rights that are not shown on this
document that the County Council is not currently aware of. This would be especially
relevant where the public has had informal access to the site or where there are references to
routes across this in maps or other historic documents. As the County Council has received
no application to recognise further rights of way affecting the site, no more informed
guidance can be offered at this stage.

40



Application number: 2025/0029/C4
Application Type:
Location: 15 St Andrews Drive, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN6 7UG

Highway and Lead Local Flood Authority Report

Substantive Response provided in accordance with article 22(5) of The Town and Country
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015:

Recommendation:
Mo Objections

Having given due regard to the appropriate local and national planning policy guidance (in
particular the National Planning Policy Framework), Lincolnshire County Council (as Highway
Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority) has concluded that the proposed development
would not be expected to have an unacceptable impact upon highway safety or a severe
residual cumulative impact upon the local highway network or increase surface water flood
risk and therefore does not wish to object to this planning application.

The site is located in a central urban area where services and facilities are within a reasonable
distance to be accessed via sustainable travel options such as walking, cycling and public
transport. Future residents of the development will not be reliant on the private car and
therefore the limited parking available at the property is considered acceptable.

Regards

Officer’s Name: John Clifton
Officer’s Title: Principal Development Management Officer
Date: 10 February 2025

41



This page is intentionally blank.



17 St Andrews Drive Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 7UG (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Mon 10 Feb 2025

The proposal for a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) on our street has raised
significant concerns among local residents.

Our street already suffers from a severe shortage of parking spaces. With narrow
roads and limited off-street parking, residents often struggle to find spots close to
their homes. The introduction of an HMO, could potentially increase the number of
vehicles on the street by a significant margin. Given that each tenant might own a
car, the addition of multiple vehicles would lead to heightened competition for already
scarce parking spaces. This situation would undoubtedly cause frustration and
inconvenience for existing residents, reducing their quality of home life.

The street in question is home to a primary school at its end. The safety of children
should be a paramount concern. Increased traffic and congestion from additional
vehicles introduced by an HMO could pose a significant risk to young students
walking to and from school.

HMOs often bring increased noise levels due to the higher number of occupants and
their varied schedules. This noise can be particularly disruptive in a residential area,
disturbing the peace and quiet that residents have come to expect. This disturbance
is especially concerning for families with young children and the elderly.

The heightened use of the street's infrastructure, including roads and utilities, can
lead to quicker wear and tear. The increased load from additional residents in an
HMO, on top of the general traffic and school usage, put a strain on these services,
leading to more frequent repairs and maintenance work, which can be disruptive and
costly for the local council and residents alike.

One of the critical objections to the HMO application lies in the discrepancies
surrounding the property's marketing and sale process. The property was not heavily
marketed; rather, it was only advertised on Facebook and through a single
independent estate agent. Furthermore, there was no 'for sale' sign displayed
outside the house, which is typically a standard practice to attract potential buyers.
This limited exposure raises concerns about whether the property was given a fair
chance to be purchased as a family home rather than being converted into an HMO.

If the property gains HMO status, it would become significantly more attractive to
developers, potentially skewing the local property market. The heightened interest
from developers could lead to a surge in similar applications, transforming more
family homes into HMOs. This shift would alter the neighbourhood's demographic
and undermine the stability and cohesiveness that define the community especially

43



in such proximity to a primary school on one end and a nursery on the other end.
The long-term residents, who have invested in the area's family-friendly environment,
may find themselves displaced by transient occupants, fundamentally changing the
character of the neighbourhood.

No. 15 was first put up for sale roughly in August 2024 for £350,000. In September
2024, the price was changed to £280,000. At the time of writing this objection, the
sale price is still £280,000. Both of these selling prices far exceed the ceiling sale
price for the street. | am concerned that if the house usage is changed to be used as
an HMO, the house will be purchased by a developer and used solely as an HMO.
Thus, the property will permanently be lost as a dwelling house for a family.

In conclusion, the objections to the HMO application are grounded in genuine
concerns about parking congestion, the safety of children attending the nearby
school, community impact, and environmental issues. It is essential that these
objections are taken seriously to ensure the well-being and safety of our
neighbourhood. The introduction of an HMO in this context would likely lead to
significant negative consequences, and we urge the local council to consider these
points carefully before making a decision.

30 St Andrews Drive Lincoln LN6 7UG (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Mon 10 Feb 2025

| object strongly to planning for an HMO in St Andrews Drive. This is an area for
families with children, as Sir Francis Hill School is around the corner.

The traffic in the street is already at capacity and causes congestion on a daily basis.
If planning is granted this will add to the already problematic parking situation on the
street, which is likely to cause more disruption and frustration for the families who
already reside here, as a HMO could bring multiple car's to one property rather than
just the one family car that you would expect for this street/area.

| would also be concerned about the increase in noise from the property for my
neighbours as I'd like to consider this street a calm and quiet environment. | feel that
multiple residents would not be considerate of the street and it's inhabitants.

| would be very concerned that if this planning is granted it will open up access for
others to follow and this would turn our neighbourhood from something pleasant to
something that would be avoided for families of the future.

21 St Andrew's Drive Lincoln LN6 7UG (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Sat 08 Feb 2025

| object to the new proposal because...

1. They previously put one in. The neighbourhood didn't want it then and still don't.
Nothing has changed so we still can't accommodate it.

44



2. The applicants are clearly untrustworthy. They say they were using it as a family
home. Yet they had at least 2 at a time, non family members living there. They said
its been empty 6 months, yet people were still living there in December. So, using
the HMO as a back up, when a rental of £1600 as opposed to £2500 HMO, is clearly
a big difference. They won't stick with rental.

3. It's a family area. We have a nursery at both ends of the street and a school. And
a couple I'd other school, primary and secondary, within walking distance.

4. Parking. This is a nightmare already at school pick up/drop off times. Cars have
ruined the grass verges. Traffic in/out is heavy. Not to mention our own vehicles,
nursery staff, hairdressers and Chinese takeaway vehicles. This property only has
space for 2 vehicles. HMO would require 5+ not to mention any guests. | struggle to
get in/out of my drive when cars are parked opposite.

4. The noise from previous occupants was high and also at unsociable hours. Car
engines and doors slamming. Music from the cars. The strange pacing up/down the
street whilst very loudly 'talking' on the phone/video calls. In there garden was even
worse for myself. | really feel for the house it shares its walls with.

5. The amount of rubbish they had. And they say that was just 3 people, imagine 5+
the bins were always overflowing, left on the street for days. And in the front garden
so we couldn't ignore it.

6. There are no other HMO in this area. So giving permission to one, would probably
lead to more. This, again, is a family area. We don't want/need HMO around here.
There are plenty other HMO slightly further away.

7. The areas with HMO properties have drastically gone downhill.

Therefore, | object. It was previously, and should still be, a family home.

25 St Andrews Drive Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 7UG (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Wed 05 Feb 2025

Object against application for change to HMO in an area that is totally family homes
with a nursery school at one end and a primary school just around the corner at the
top.

20 St Andrews Drive Lincoln LN6 7UG (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Wed 05 Feb 2025

45



| object to the change of use from dwelling to flexible use dwelling and HMO for a
number of reasons:

1) This is a family neighbourhood, currently with no HMOs. The very close proximity
to a day nursery and full primary school, naturally attracts families to the area. There
are also 4 secondary schools and another primary within a half hour's walk, adding
to the attraction. With rental houses rarely coming on the market in the immediate
surrounding area, we need to preserve the stock of family homes to allow families to
access the education provision without the need for driving.

Granting mixed use would go against this as it is often easier to rent out a single
room so the application would, in effect, be full HMO permission by the back door. A
previous application for HMO was withdrawn when it became clear there was no
support for it in the local area.

When you look at the likely income, it is clear that HMO would be the preferred
arrangement for the landlords - the average price for an HMO room in the area
seems to be over £500pcm (without a drive), equating to £2500pcm for the 5 rooms.
The property was initially marketed at £1800pcm, now dropped to offers over
£1600pcm. As you can see, there would be a clear incentive to price families out,
with a high full property price, so that they could then "fall back" on the mixed use
permission to let out at a much higher rate.

2) While the building itself seems to be suited to an HMO style setup, the land it is on
does not. There is only parking for 2 cars available on the driveway, with 5,
potentially 6, bedrooms the likelihood is there will be more cars than the property can
cope with. There is already a problem with parking on the road due to a few reasons:
- drop off and pick up times at the school

- hair salon and day nursery staff and patrons parking on the road

- evenings and weekends work vans and private cars being left on the road.

The biggest issue is the third one, as the vehicles tend to sit all weekend long. This
often leads to a tight chicane for car drivers and would be nigh on impossible for
emergency services to navigate.

Adding a further 3+ cars into the mix would mean the situation would get worse,
especially as the majority of the issues caused by bullet points 2 and 3 above are
actually focussed on that section of the street.

3) The speed with which reasonably priced family dwellings are both sold and
rented, both on the same road and the surrounding area, shows that there is a need
for good quality, affordable family dwellings in the area. This is a larger property, a
quick search on property letting websites shows that 4+ bedroom family homes are
at a premium within 1 mile of the address (a reasonable walking distance from the
school). In fact there is only 1 other property that | could find. Within 3 miles this

46



goes up to just over 20, but they would all involve driving into the school/nursery and
there would be closer schools available, so not really comparable.

The property was initially marketed for family lets at £1800, which would be a
massive premium for the area and only compares with properties much further out,
villages etc..., with large gardens and plenty of parking. | now note that the property
has been reduced to £1600 or £1650, depending on the letting agent, and appears
to have been let. This shows 2 things:

- It is possible to let the property if it is placed within the market at the correct price
for families.

- Any reclassification to HMO is not needed as it can be let as a family home.

Added to this the glut of HMO properties within the 1 mile radius of the address, 49
at time of writing on Rightmove, there does seem to be a need for family dwellings
and no need for HMO/house share rooms.

4) | would also call into question the honesty of the application.

On the application the owners state that the property has been vacant for more than
6 months. There were people living there in December 2024, only 2 months ago. So
the property has been empty for barely 2 months.

The application also states that the property was previously used as a family home
for them and their family. This is also untrue, they had been letting out at least 2
bedrooms to people who were not members of their family. They were advised by
City of Lincoln Council that they would have to get an HMO licence in order to rent
out more than 1 bedroom.

5) Previous experience with the tenants they had also does not fill me with any
confidence that any tenancies would be managed well. With the owners living in the
property there was frequent noise late into the night, waking neighbours up. People
loudly making video calls, often into the small hours in the morning, keeping other
residents awake. The owners were aware of these issues and did nothing about it.

In closing my main objections are that this road is a family road, very much sought
after, as evidenced by the speed with which any properties are both sold and let,
when placed at a level that the market can handle. The land attached to the building
is not appropriate for the number of extra vehicles 5 separate tenancies would
generate and on-street parking is already over stretched, both in the daytime and
evenings. Finally, it appears the property has been let, now that a more reasonable
rent has been asked for, so there appears to be no need for the mixed-use HMO
licence to be awarded "just in case". If it were, my fear is that the current tenancy
would be terminated ASAP so that the property could be let as an HMO at the first
available opportunity, there is a clear financial incentive to do this.

a7



18 St Andrews Drive Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 7UG (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Mon 03 Feb 2025

We object to the house been used as a HMO as there are already been lots of
different people living in that house in the last few years . The noise of people getting
out at the house and disregarding neighbours late at night and car engines running
and music flowing out .

This is a family friendly neighbourhood and does not require HMO's . If that house is
given the green light , then this area will go the same way with lots of houses
changing into HMOQO's and so the decline of a family friendly neighbourhood.

Over the last few years we have had cars from that house parked across our drive
and blocking us from getting out .

We total reject the application and hope planners do the same.

Ross Morgan .

1 St Andrews Drive Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 7UG (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Sun 02 Feb 2025

| would object to the conversion of the dwelling into a HMO due to: risk of increased
congestion within the street if additional cars are added; the unknown effect on street
water pressure if a building originally designed to hold one bathroom and kitchen
may be extended to multiply water extracted from the mains, possibly lowering the
average pressure for homes along the street where ours is minimal already; and
having left an area surrounded by HMO properties I've seen how the state of the
localised area can degrade when more HMO properties are opened. Since St
Andrews Drive is observed as a family-friendly residential area due to local amenities
and the existing demographic, HMOs should be directed to other areas closer to
town centre / high street.

14 St Andrews Drive Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 7UG (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Sat 01 Feb 2025

| object change use 15 St Andrews Drive because this area is for family rather. We
bought the house last year because of quiet friendly neighbourhood for our family
Also this house is opposite mine and |

Last year 15 St Andrews Drive was having so many tenants with cars . Some of
them have to park on the street .It cause problem to get into you driveway This area
is now having problem with parking at school time .nursery staff parking there is no
space for other cars . This area has no more hmo houses nearby .| concern about
noise and more waste coming from this property .Please consider my opinion when
you will be decide .

22 St Andrews Drive Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 7UG (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Thu 30 Jan 2025

48



| object to the change of use to 15 St Andrews Drive. This property is several houses
way from mine but | feel that it will have a negative impact on all the houses in the
street. Decrease the cost of selling property too.

| am worried that if usage of this property is given then it will give precedent for the
street . | have lived in my property for 23 years and it is a very quiet street.
Properties are homes for families, couples and elderly people.

We have NO need for a HMO property in the street, it encourages multiple cars
double parking which block the street causing unnecessary stress to residents. It
encourages unnecessary noise levels at anti social hours as the tenants may work
anti social hours.

The property in question used to be a family home and should be used as a family
home. Local school is around the corner on Bristol Drive. This property could be
rented out to a family who need to attend the local primary school or nursery.

| have no objection to the property being rented to a family but not a HMO who do
not know each other.

13 St Andrews Drive Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 7UG (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Thu 30 Jan 2025

| live in the house adjoining the semi-detached property 15 St. Andrews Drive so the
possibility of the owners changing the use from a Dwelling C3 to HMO C4 is
particularly distressing.

My front bedroom adjoins the front bedroom at number 15 and when there were
tenants in the house previously, the occupants played music and conducted loud
phone conversations at 3 a.m. which woke me up and kept me awake. In addition, in
the summer the occupants were outside in their back garden, making a lot of noise
way past midnight which was very disruptive.

St. Andrews Drive is a road where families live and is popular because of a children's
day nursery a few hundred yards away and a primary school in the next road. With a
hair salon also nearby, there's a lot of congestion and people park on the road so
that it's often difficult for me to get my own car out of my driveway. The property in
question has driveway capacity for two cars, but if HMO status is granted, there will
undoubtedly be more street-parking. This is a health and safety risk, apart from the
nuisance factor, as it would (and has) made it very difficult for emergency vehicles to
get down the road.

Household waste is another factor - already, the bins there have overflowed with
rubbish being blown over to my garden. For some reason, the owners think that their
green bin for garden waste will be emptied even though they obviously haven't paid
the £39 fee to LCC for this service. They left their green bin out on the pavement,
proving to be an obstruction for wheelchairs and pushchairs - eventually, they

49



realised that their bin wasn't going to be emptied but it took weeks for that to happen.

The general apathy about waste and parking particularly concern me because if
HMO status is granted, | think it will set a precedent for other family homes in our
road to be converted too. Several families have moved in around my house recently,
and I'm pleased because it's definitely an area where families will thrive. HMO
houses are not appropriate in St. Andrews Drive.

Beck Hole 32 St Andrews Drive Lincoln LN6 7UG (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Tue 28 Jan 2025

The change of use from a Dwellinghouse to House of Multiple Occupancy will have a
negative impact on this area.

There is only off road parking for 2 cars therefore if each of the occupants had a
vehicle it would have a negative impact on an area that is already heavily impacted
with traffic due to the Papermoon day nursery and the hair dressers (on the corner of
St Andrews Drive and Boultham Park Road) that use St Andrews Drive as a car park.
Also during the day when parents drop off and collect children from Sir Francis Hill
school the road is congested and can lead to wait times to turn on to Boultham Park
Road of 15+ minutes.

The application states that the property has been empty for more than 6 months, this
is incorrect as the most recent occupants moved out less than 2 months ago 8
December.

should this application be allowed to proceed, it could lead to others wishing to
purchase properties with this in mind and having a detrimental effect on the
neighbourhood and potentially leading to a reduced value of family homes.

This is an area that is currently inhabited by families with a great community
atmosphere.

16 St Andrews Drive Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 7UG (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Tue 28 Jan 2025

| strongly object to the proposed change of use of 15 St Andrews Drive from a
Dwelling C3 to a flexible use HMO C4 on multiple grounds.

1. Precedent.
The are no HMO's on the this street as it has always been a street for families, to

allow this plan to go through it means more potential buyers will look at this area with
the plan to turn more buildings into HMO's, The LN6 area has an adequate supply of

50



HMO properties, and further development would be inappropriate given the
residential nature of this street.

The house is up for rent at an exorbitant fee thus pricing out families hence why no
interest has been seen in the property from families. Also we only recently had a
family move in next door so clearly there are families out there looking for affordable
properties close to a school.

2. Parking.

The street is already very congested let alone when parents are picking up and
dropping off their kids for the school and workers at the hair salon and the nursery.
The property in question has a limited driveway capacity for two cars, yet a typical
HMO could introduce 4-6 additional vehicles. This would exacerbate parking issues,
increase road safety risks for children, and strain the area.

3. Waste.

Already their has been a significant buildup of waste at the property, often the
general waste and recycling bins are overflowing, Increased occupancy associated
with an HMO would worsen this problem, potentially attracting vermin and
diminishing the area's cleanliness and appeal.

4. Noise.

There has been a lot of noise coming from the property with people leaving and
arriving late at night, playing loud music and speaking loudly on their phones all late
into the night sometimes at midnight.

Being turned into a HMO will again make this worsen with the increased number of
tenants it will hurt the peaceful nature of the area that the residents of St Andrews
Drive and surrounding areas cherish.

5. Misleading application.

The application states that the property has been vacant for 6 months, thats
completely untrue as they only moved out in december and have been in and out
regularly since.

They also state that only themselves and their family have lived there, again this is

false as they have regularly used it as an informal HMO having had tenant's renting
rooms out and different people moving in and out.

51



| believe that with the objections neighbours have, the misleading and false
application that this should be looked into further and be denied any further
applications for changing to a HMO.

| urge the council to do the right thing and deny this application.

11 St Andrews Drive Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 7UG (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Tue 28 Jan 2025

| object to the application for house of multiple occupation,we have problems with
parking already and this is not the sort of area suitable for homo, house prices would
be lowered we would then have more applications for more.it is time the tax paying
home owners are taken into account instead of people who don't care about the
area.

9 St Andrews Drive Lincoln LN6 7UG (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Mon 27 Jan 2025
| wouldn't like to have multiple occupancy in this Area because it's a family street

9 St Andrews Drive Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 7UG (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Mon 27 Jan 2025

This is a family based street, we do not want a multiple occupancy household
neighbourhood.

19 St Andrews Drive Lincoln LN6 7UG (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Sun 26 Jan 2025

| object to the application 2025/0029/C4 - Change of use from existing Dwelling
(Class C3) to flexible use between Dwelling (Class C3) and House in Multiple
Occupancy (Class C4).

Firstly | am concerned by the inaccurate information that has been stated by the
applicant in their application.

The applicant has stated in their application, that the property has been vacant for
more than six months. This is misleading and not true.

The occupants of the property only moved out in December 2024, which was only 2
months ago. This makes this application statement incorrect and misleading to the
planning officers.

The applicant has also stated in their application that they used the property as a
family home for themselves and their family. Once again this information is
misleading as they were also renting out two rooms to two tenants who were not
members of their family. They rented out two rooms to tenants from 2022 to 2024.

52



This contributed to problems that the neighbouring properties experienced. This
application statement is inaccurate and misleading to the planning officers.

Allowing the property to be used as an HMO will cause a family dwelling house to be
lost.

The applicant first advertised the property for rent to families in September 2024 for
£1,800 per month. In this application the applicant is insinuating that there is a need
for HMO usage rather than a family home. The applicant marketed the property at
such a high price that it priced most families out of being able to afford this property
in this area. There is still a need for housing for families in this area but at a realistic
and affordable price per month.

The applicant applied for the HMO usage on the 21st January 2025. On the 23rd
January 2025 the applicant reduced the rental price to OIEO £1,600 and at the time
of making this objection the marketing ads show that tenants have now been
secured by the applicant. So as the applicant has now advertised the property at a
more realistic price for the street/area they have secured tenants. Therefore HMO
usage is no longer needed or applicable.

There are no other HMOs in the street and the LN6 area already provides a high
level of single and HMO accommodation. Many of the current HMO's in the area are
vacant and unoccupied. There is a greater need in this street for houses for families,
especially those with children.

| am concerned that if this property's usage is changed from Dwellinghouse to allow
HMO usage it will set a precedent in the street for other properties to be converted
into HMO usage.

Properties in the street and area are needed to accommodate families with children,
especially those who need to attend Frances Hill School, which is located at the
bottom of St Andrews Drive.

The current rental properties in the street are rented out to families thus in keeping
with the structure and community amenities of the area.

The property, Number 15 only has a driveway that can accommodate two cars and
the garage is far too small to be used to park a car. When the owners were living at
the property, the property was unable to support their vehicles plus the additional
vehicles of their visitors and tenants.

Additional cars at the property cannot be supported by the off road parking as the

road already has congestion problems, which are made worse by people from
outside the area parking in the street and going to work, clients visiting the hair

53



salon, parents parking to drop their children off at the Frances Hill school and the
Day Nursery at the end of St. Andrews Drive.

Over the time that the owners and their tenants were living in the property there was
an increase in the noise level from the property, for example people video calling and
talking loudly on their phones often up to midnight every day of the week and then
for many hours often during the day. This increase in noise level was coming from
the bedrooms and the garden. | am concerned that these noise problems will
increase further with more tenants living at the property under HMO usage.

Due to the nature of the applicant's employment and outside interests it is likely that
they will place students in the property if it is granted HMO usage. The applicant is
unlikely to make the effort through marketing to keep this property available for a
family to live in.

| would ask that you please take my comments into account when you make a
decision on this application.

54



Iltem No. 5b

Application Number: | 2024/0687/FUL

Site Address: Land Adjacent To Lindum And Minster Practice, Cabourne
Court, Lincoln

Target Date: 30th December 2024

Agent Name: Hay Associates Limited

Applicant Name: Glenholme Healthcare Group

Proposal: Erection of a three storey care home (Use Class C2) together

with associated access, car and cycle parking, landscaping and
amenity space provision plus the creation of additional car
parking spaces for the existing adjacent medical practices.

Background - Site Location and Description

The application proposes a 59 bed care home (Use Class C2) which would be located within
a new building fronting Nettleham Road. The development would be accessed through the
existing access, Cabourne Court and include parking for the care home as well as additional
spaces for the existing medical practice.

The existing Lindum and Minster Medical Practices are located to the west whilst Cathedral
View Court (retirement housing) is located to the north. Residential properties are located
on the south east side of Nettleham Road. The site is currently an area of green space
accessible to the public as there is currently unrestricted access via a footpath to the doctors’
surgeries. Other uses on Cabourne Court include a pharmacy, sport injury clinic, a
chiropractic clinic, a dental practice and hearing specialist.

The site is currently two areas of grassland bordered by a hedgerow and containing a single
tree. There are more substantial trees on the Nettleham Road frontage outside of the site
which would be unaffected by the proposal.

The principal of development of the site was previously established through a previous
planning application for student accommodation on the site. Application 2016/0389/FUL
granted planning permission for a 70 bedroomed student development within three buildings
2 and 3 storeys high.

The application before us proposes a building of three storeys, arranged in an L shape with
its main elevation facing Nettleham Road. It is also proposed to provide an additional 30
parking spaces, cycle parking and new landscaping.

The agent has provided a detailed Design and Access Statement which can be viewed at
the following link and there have been positive pre-application and post submission
discussions with the architect in relation to the design which has resulted in changes being
made which have improved the proposal significantly.

Site History
Reference: Description Status Decision Date:
2009/0476/F Erection of a single | Granted 15th  September
storey rear extension | Conditionally 2009
and additional parking.
2016/0389/FUL Erection of one three | Granted 15t October 2016
storey and two two | conditionally
storey  buildings to

55



accommodate 13
residential units (totalling
70 rooms) Formation of
additional 48 parking
spaces, associated
landscaping and new
pedestrian access.

Case Officer Site Visit

Several visits most recently 14 February. The site is visible from public areas.

Policies Referred to

Policy S1

Policy S6

Policy S8

Policy S21
Policy S53
Policy S56
Policy S57
Policy S60
Policy S61
Policy S66

The Spatial Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy

Design Principles for Efficient Buildings

Reducing Energy Consumption — Non-Residential Development
Flood Risk and Water Resources

Design and Amenity

Development on Land Affected by Contamination

The Historic Environment

Protecting Biodiversity and Geodiversity

Biodiversity Opportunity and Delivering Measurable Net Gains

Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows

National Planning Policy Framework:

o Para 10 — presumption in favour of sustainable development
o Para 61 — promoting housing choice
o Para 124 - “Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development”

Issues

The application raises the following issues which are addressed in the report below:

N>R~ WNE

Consultations

Principle of Development and Compliance with National and Local Planning Policy
Impact on Amenity of Adjacent Residents

Impact on the Visual Amenity of this Part of the City

Highway Matters

Impact and Contribution to Biodiversity

Energy Efficiency and Sustainability

Site Specific Technical Matters

S106 Contributions to Local Health Provision

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted January 2023. All responses are copied in full with your agenda and
we have endeavoured to ensure that the relevant planning issues raised are addressed
throughout this report.

56




Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee

Comment

John Lincolnshire Police

Comments received in respect of crime prevention advice

Lincoln Civic Trust

Comments Received

Upper Witham, Witham First
District & Witham Third
District

No objections

Environment Agency

No objections

NHS - ICB

Comments Received — s106 contribution requested

Education Planning Manager,
Lincolnshire County Council

Comments Received — no objections

Highways & Planning

Comments Received — travel plan details to be modified

57




Public Consultation Responses

Name Address

Mrs Susan O'Shea 40 Cathedral View Court
Cabourne Avenue
Lincoln

LN2 2GF

Mr Michael O'Shea 40 Cathedral View Court
Cabourne Avenue
Lincoln

LN2 2GF

Mr F And Mrs M Drewery Flat 38

Cathedral View Court
Cabourne Avenue
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN2 2GF

Mr Dave Burrough Our Lady of Lincoln Catholic Primary School
Laughton Way

LINCOLN

LN2 2HE

Mrs Anne Childs 16 Cathedral View Court

Cabourne Avenue

Lincoln

LN2 2GF

Flat 12

Cathedral View Court
Cabourne Avenue
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN2 2GF

Miss Jasmine Kent 75 Longdales Road
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN2 2JS

Mrs Joanne Williamson 37 Cathedral View Court
Cabourne Avenue
Lincoln

LN2 2GF

Consideration

The Principle of this Development in this Location

The application for a care home follows from an application granted planning permission in
2016 for what was intended to be student accommodation. This application proposed a three
storey building and two smaller two storey buildings.

58



The application now before us is a three storey building which faces Nettleham Road with a
return leg that will face towards the adjacent Ravendale playing fields. The principle of the
development of this land for a building with a use such as this was established by the 2016
planning permission and whilst this was ultimately not built out, it is material to the
consideration now before us and should be afforded considerable weight.

The proposal is in conformity with national and local planning policy and there is a clear
need, evidenced by the applicant and through the Local Plan and the housing needs
assessment which underpins it for additional care home provision within the City to
accommodate our ageing population. The adjacent uses are well located to serve a care
home use.

Impact on Amenity of Adjacent Residents

The impact on the adjacent building to the east of the site, Cathedral View Court has been
carefully considered and members will see that several objections have been received by
residents of that building in relation to the impact of the proposal on their amenity and on
views of the Cathedral from their dwellings. The new building will have a gable that faces
towards Cathedral View Court and this sits forward of the gable at that building. It is at a
distance of approximately 12 metres, corner to corner and there will be an impact on the
existing windows in the gable. However, this impact is not likely to be significant given the
offset in the siting between the two buildings. It is not considered therefore that there will be
an unacceptable effect in terms of loss of light or in terms of an overbearing effect. It is
appreciated that residents are concerned that they may lose a view towards the Cathedral
but as members will understand, the loss of a view such as this is not something that the
planning process can reasonably protect.

Impact on the Visual Amenity of the Area

Cathedral View Court is a three storey building and the application proposal is also a three
storey building. There is therefore an established context for a building of the scale proposed
and the architects have worked hard to design a building that will fit well into the existing
context without appearing overly large in terms of its height but importantly in terms of its
mass. There can be a tendency for building with consistent floor levels to be unduly
horizontal in appearance and this can also lead to a repetitive window pattern; this is
particularly common with care homes which need a level floorplate for each storey. The
architects have worked hard to deal with this issue and the elevations that are proposed
have been cleverly modelled to break up the horizontal emphasis of the building and give
the facade a more vertical proportion which is characteristic of the prevailing style of
development in the local area. The window proportions and the glazing pattern contribute to
this vertical emphasis and the framing of the windows, either in reveal or with a small
projection, adds variety and interest to avoid the elevations appearing overly flat. The overall
composition is well considered and appropriate to this part of the City.

Highway Matters

The parking proposed for the new development would be provided to the north of the existing
surgeries — an additional 30 spaces would be provided adjacent to the existing parking for
the wider site. Lincolnshire County Council, as Highway authority, is largely satisfied with
the proposal in terms of highway safety and parking and is considering further information
in relation to a travel plan for staff of the proposed care home. The aim will be to reduce the

59



need for car travel to and from the site. No objections are raised to the potential traffic
generation by the site — care homes do not tend to generate high volumes of traffic.

There is currently a footpath which runs diagonally across the site to Nettleham Road — this
is proposed to be diverted around the eastern side of the new building.

Biodiversity Net Gain

Members will appreciate that a development such as this has a mandatory duty to provide
a net gain to biodiversity of at least 10% over and above what is present on the existing site.
The applicant has provided detailed ecological assessments of the baseline condition of the
existing site and has then also provided a similarly detailed assessment of the new planting
and landscaping proposed with the development. This new landscaping goes some way to
achieving the 10% net gain and the remainder of that net gain will be provided through the
purchase of credits offsite. This is a standard approach with which the Council’s ecological
advisor is happy. The detailed analysis is being concluded at the time of writing and we will
be able to report further at your meeting.

Enerqy Efficiency

Local Plan policy requires the applicants to demonstrate that their development will achieve
high standards of energy efficiency and on site energy generation with the aim of minimising
the need to import energy to the site. The applicant has submitted a Sustainability Appraisal
which sets out in detail the energy demands for both h space heating and water heating.
The particular characteristics of a care home means that the energy demand is higher than
a typical domestic house and whilst the applicant is incorporating air source heat pumps for
the hot water and photovoltaic panels on the roof there will still be a need for some additional
energy input. This is not an appropriate location for a wind turbine and the site is too small
to accommodate ground source heat pumps and so some of the space heating needs is
proposed to be met by gas boilers. The design of the building, its orientation and the higher
than Building Regulations levels of insulation mean that the use the boilers will be as low as
possible, taking into account the particular vulnerabilities of the residents.

Site Specific Issues:

Archaeology — the City Archaeologist has assessed the applicants Archaeological Report
and advised that t application is supported by an appropriate desk-based assessment (DBA)
and is therefore compliant with the relevant national and local planning policies. The DBA
found a moderate potential for archaeology of the Roman period to be present and to be
impacted by the proposed development. It found a negligible potential for archaeological
remains from all other periods. | agree with the findings of the DBA and would therefore
advise you that the standard archaeological conditions should be applied in order to ensure
that any Roman remains that might be present can be effectively recorded. | envisage that
a scheme of works for monitoring and recording during the construction of the proposed
development will be sufficient to mitigate against the potential impact, but the applicant
should be aware that more extensive mitigation works may be required in the event of
significant archaeological remains being identified during building works.

Contaminated Land — the Council’s Scientific Officer has assessed the applicants site
examination in relation to the potential for contamination and advises that a Geo-
Environmental Report has been submitted which confirms that the site represents a low risk
with respect to potential contamination and that specific remedial or mitigation measures are

60



not required. It would however be prudent to attach a condition to a planning permission to
cover unexpected contamination and validation of the completed development.

Section 106 and other Developer Contributions to Local Infrastructure

The NHS has responded to their consultation and advised that the development will be
expected to have an impact on local health services. This has also been mentioned by local
residents who have commented on the application. The NHS has therefore requested a
contribution of £21 201 which would be spent at the adjacent medical practices to increase
capacity and align the services there to the care home need. This request meets the tests
for s106 as set out in legislation and the applicant has agreed to make the contribution. A
s106 legal agreement is currently being drafted and we hope to have that signed and sealed
by the time of your meeting.

There are a number of detailed technical reports which accompany this application and
members will be able to read them by accessing the Councils website and searching with
the application reference number - 2024/0687/FUL - Simple Search

Conclusion

This application is carefully considered and proposes a development that accords with
national and local planning policy. The site has previously had planning permission for a
three and two storey building and the design of the current proposal is of sufficient merit to
be acceptable on this main approach to the City. The technical details are well developed
and deal with any issues. The application will also make an appropriate contribution to local
NHS provision.

Application Determined within Target Date

No — extension of time agreed.

Recommendation

That authority to grant planning permission is delegated to the Assistant Director (Planning
and City Services) to grant subject to the satisfactory conclusion of the s106 agreement and
in accordance with the conditions listed below.

Planning Conditions

1. Development to commence within three years

2. Development to be undertaken in accordance with the approved plans and
associated technical documents

3. Landscaping to be completed before development is first occupied

4. Car parking to be completed and available before development is first occupied

5. Unexpected contamination and verification of final development to be dealt with in

accordance with details to be approved

Standard archaeological conditions

Sample of all facing materials before development above ground is commenced

Development carried out in accordance with Arboricultural Report — protection of

existing trees adjacent to the site.

© N o

61


https://planning.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/

This page is intentionally blank.



Site location plan

63



A

PoRceceey

7///????

NS SN

ES=

L
i

Proposed ground floor plan

64



Agipp LEVEL 2 Secons Ficor Plan
STA00 -

T

S§ip# LEVEL 1 First Floce Pan
54175

Sy LEVEL 0 Grouwnd Flooe Plan

A§iP# LEVEL -1 Bassmant Plan
47725

Proposed South-West Elevation

SR LEVEL Buemenpanl o e s T s s g e s e e e g s e o MR IAG A

55,

Proposed North-West Elevation

65



o LEVEL 2 Second o P
57400

bor LEVEL 1 Frat oo pan.
54175

<7 /EL 0 Ground Floor Plan

66



67



68



o

-

Figur 3: The site looking at Nettleham Road

69



Y TR
4 :

Figure 4: Existing footpath tb‘l-\lét‘tlehar.n Roéd

70



Cabourne Court consultation responses

From: Adrienne Fisher

Sent: 03 November 2024 13:12

To: Technical Team (City of Lincoln Council)
Subject: Your reference 2024/0687/FUL.

You don'l often get email [rom_earn why this is important

Warning: External Email. Do not click links, open attachments, or reply unless cerlain Allow sender | Block sender |
of safely. Do nol share inappropriately. Reporl

| have received your letter of 23rd Oclober and wish to make the following comments about the
planning application for the land adjacent to the Lindum and Minster Practice. Cabourne Court
LN2 2JP
| have no objection in principal to a care home on this site | do not think the building is right for
this location because of its size and style.
All the buildings on Cabourne Court are 2 storeys high and are constructed using traditional
materials and | think that any new building should blend in with those around it not stick out like a
sore .thumb, This particular design is a modern heap with no aesthetic appeal and will look guite
out of place.

| am also of the opinion that a care home should not be 3 storeys in height.

People living in care homes are there because they can no longer look after themselves.Thei are

usually elderly and many are frail, infirm, have mobility problems,some are even bedridden
hln the event of an emergency needing the residents
to be evacuated asap how long would it take to rescue aged and infirm people from the third floor
especially if the lifts were not working. This is a worst case scenario but | do think that in the
present risk averse times patient safety should be considered.| have visited some care homes
over the years and none of them were more than 2 storeys high.

| was concerned over comments said to have been made by the developers and reported in a
local news outlet to the effect that in the event of the care home closing the building could be used
for student housing.This should not be allowed to happen.There should be strict conditions
attached to any planning consent that the building should only be used for health related
purposes.

| have also been looking at the plans for the car park and | notice that an area has been
designated as a cycle park.99 per cent of people going to Cabourne Court travel by car -with the
occasional motor bike.Local people either walk there or use mobility scooters.| have hardly ever
seen a bicycle there, they are nearly as rare as sightings of the Loch Ness Monster so | do not
think a cycle park is necessary instead the space should provide much needed additional car
parking.

Finally,as you sit in your ivory tower considering this planning application please remember that it
is | and my neighbours who will be forced to live with the consequences of your decision.

from Adrienne Fisher

12 Cathedral View Court,Cabourne Avenue

71



Customer Detalls
Name: Mrs Susan O'Shea
Address: 40 Cathedral View Court Cabourne Ave Lincoln Ln2 2gf

Comment Detalls

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:After considering the plans little seems to have thought about in terms of pressure on
existing service. There are two GP practices adjacent to my property which are very busy already
serving people who live on both local estates. | have heard there are also plans to build 80+new
houses on Ravendale which will impact services further. There is a Pharmacy in Cabourne Court
which is accessed by patients from both GP practices. When collecting prescriptions patients can
be waiting as long as 10 minutes just to ask for their medication and then some time after for it to
be ready. The queue can even extend outside the door, which is not pleasant to wait in when the
weather is poor. | strongly object to access to the proposed build from Cabourne Avenue. This is a
small but very busy area with constant traffic flow on/off the estate, school pick up and drop of,
Church activities, access to medical services, Cathedral view, (which has 60 flats) and as well as
being used a shortcut through from Riseholme Rd by traffic. Traffic can be very slow moving and
queued as far back as Laughton Way at peak times with navigating cars parked around the school
difficult. | note that the plans indicate the proposed build could be used as a Hotel/Student
accommodation in the future. | also object to this on the grounds that the local area has
predominantly elderly people dwelling there and issues of noise and disturbance would not be
welcomed.

72



Customer Detalls
MName: Mrs Anne Childs
Address: 16 Cathedral View Court Cabourne Avenue Lincoln LN2 2GF

Comment Detalls

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:| write as a resident of Cathedral View Court to lodge my objections to the proposed
building of a Care Home adjacent to my home. The grounds for my objection are ss follows;

1) The plans show a three- storey development. | live in a flat on the ground floor of Cathedral
View Court, which has a south-facing aspect, towards the cathedral itself. This structure would
undoubtedly have a highly negative impact on the light-levels | currently enjoy in my lounge,
kitchen and bedroom (i.e. the vast majority of my living spaces). This would be the case for all of
those who live in flats along that elevation of Cathedral View Court. A three-storey structure would
also have a negative impact on the aesthetics of and view from the flats along that side. Indeed,
not only would the light be obstructed by the new building, but any view of the cathedral would be
either partially or fully occluded. For the residents of this side of the building, Cathedral VIEW
Court, would no longer ring true. Whilst discussing ringing, those of us who enjoy the sounds of
the bells might well have a much reduced , if not completely silenced, enjoyment from them. | note
with interest that the October 2024 Pre-Application response contains a comment from the Council
of the likelihood of objections from Cathedral View Court on such grounds, and of the importance
of ensuring a true two-story scale.

2) | also have concerns about the capacity of the two adjacent medical practices, as well as the
local pharmacy to meet the expanded healthcare needs arising from the Care Home. Current
provision and capacity appears often overstretched, and this would surely only exacerbate the
situation. | may have missed it, but | can find no local impact assessment on this aspect among
the supporting documentation. |s there clear evidence that the facility would be able to offer its
residents sufficient on-site health and care provision so as not to require it from the existing
practices, or of plans to enhance existing provision (appointments, personnel, opening hours etc.)

to offset increased needs?

3) Finally, | understand that there may be something in the planning proposal that would allow for
the future use of the building as something other than a Care Home (e.g. as student
accommodation). This may be hearsay, but, if true, is of real concern, particularly as such a use
was apparently one of the reasons for an earlier planning application being refused.

73



Customer Details
Name: Mrs Joanne Williamson
Address: 37 Cathedral View Court, Cabourne Avenue Cabourne Avenue Lincoln LN2 2GF

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of the Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:My concerns are:

1. Safety issues regarding evacuation of elderly persons in event of any emergency, particularly
those on 3rd floor.

2. Impact on increase of water and sewage services.

3. Impact on increase in noise and light pollution.

4. What would happen if the care home was not successful, | would not be happy about a change
of usage, to, say student accommodation or social housing.

5. We do not have much open green space, why could we not have, perhaps a nature park,
perhaps named after the late Queen.

6. My last issue, is, to me, the most important, if this project goes ahead, | would lose my view of
the greenery, and the Cathedral. In view of the fact that my building is called Cathedral View
Court, it would be important that the views are maintained.

Lastly, | admit the carparking issue needs to be looked at, but please, do not go ahead with this
project.

74



Customer Detalls
Name: Mr michael O'Shea
Address: 40 Cathedral View Court Cabourne Avenue Lincoln LN2 2GF

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:l am writing in response to the proposals of the planning application to build a new care
home on land adjacent to Cabourne Court Lincoln. There are several matters that concern me to
which | am vehemently objecting to the application made. Firstly, Facilities, the two surgeries
located by the proposed site are already at stretching point and unable to cope as it stands without
any additional pressure, as is the local pharmacy. Traffic, Cabourne Ave leading to Cabourne
court is already a bottle neck for the two Ermine estates, East and West, being used as a "rat run"
especially during school times with bus routes and church access impacting travel further. An
article in the local newspaper ( Thurs Oct 31st 2024) states further use for the care home could be
adapted to a hotel or student accommodation. Rumours 2 yrs ago were that a student village was
being proposed so is this the ultimate plan? Putting a large group of students in an area that
housing a high proportion of vulnerable and elderly residents is certainly not acceptable. | am
aware there are plans to build somewhere in the region of 80 houses on the Ravendale side. This
will also have a huge impact on the services on the estate as well as increased traffic. | have to
leave a considerable time earlier as it is just to get to work, having to queue to get out of Cathedral
View Court itself, then queuing again along Cabourne Ave, with horrendous traffic queues on
Nettleham Rd to get to the bypass. So as a resident who would be impacted by these plans |
strongly object.

Customer Detalls
Name: Miss Jasmine Kent

Address: 75 Longdales Road Lincoln LN2 2JS

Comment Detalls

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer made comments in support of the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:

Comment:

75



Customer Details
Name: Mr Dave Burrough
Address: Our Lady of Lincoln Catholic Primary School Laughton Way LINCOLN LN2 2HE

Comment Detalils

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer made comments neither objecting to or supporting the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:

Comment:We can't see there being a problem but would like to mention that part of the carpark
that is planned faces onto Key Stage 2 Playground this area is currently covered by hedgerow. is
the hedgerow to be removed? If so, how will this area be protected from overlookers onto the
school playground?

76



38 caTHepRAL ViEU
2 ounT
C.aBeurniE AVE

Linc ot L2 2GF

-

—IO tt'\.-L FLc‘uv‘ v-) 0 -[f-tﬂ(_é_f

Noiia od jecet b
- Pro — Develo e PRI o al Lond oud oo

OLL»- Aisry. o (\/1 walas ﬂ’c»c_,l- Ca Coboulns Cowt lLidcoud
L2 23F

Ref 202 /o (,%7/&»

j aewd (,L {_&J “ t—} ) 13) ek pes e P “)'L) t~ U\-\ C.'v‘v'-‘ ovie-
Y { ~ B s 0 £ @i Lt. ] l’\'\c b fo LI_LI\.-u. o Ercd e an
C ,_)(‘LA(C‘(_-.L. o~ AL I) _) vV , 1l,

Calbsin s Avenu Medte t.ufvv)» on t A{L&'k'”\1w d

(PP g § Ve c*—*“"* e h ek

Ct‘t‘{"w‘ -~ L‘Lt’ Cral L Ci—(\n—y oo ',"’_\—Q
“q, [') re fn‘u-u.cl ('L‘?-U "1"  falaicao i S 1 9 Ad ) eraets wWould mdec

{. £ - s o al e
L v 1k = ”\-*-*j '-y Wo M2 3 Gl ‘_‘) ‘Jt|c_.LJ—1.-"(.) LvLc"\f\yx_'ow~

or B eliddias C_O_fv\.u-v_’.) cwel _jt;g}:p t: the eheal N

ckf'(' LN
n /}C’{. Q_l'tj »(j."uur-cl.) @ O C_Q\m(;_k‘__ dhue b - ‘\QW‘CL P t

Lt.z. O newaina

)
%} ook (_)—«L,L b.»l&.&_ . ’ﬁ:;—, C-ounm ot ba g;iu-ﬂ wed t: L-
o

Li Faaiclay LA (™ Goe UDers [J .’ '}\ 3 [& \m..
lh' \L- - ‘ ora
C/L)L

MA “WCracs 1‘.L-

l\ t‘ wrbtdoar Cencesn \L pes r) ‘-v!L.LV_t T & ‘1: I | -

2 - - | » ” ‘V
eld = Lj v (’/24,1&1\‘-1 Q ‘ & et e dn ‘.L \ (V-5 é. ourk t ‘3‘) Cli‘-r ‘-——uﬁ»
/

Novag Cael C.L.Aa.,(.s..-"p;;.n .

y ov‘L.—Lcﬂluj)cA__LL Lass (.-}’ Lo AL,

p"_i-‘«z.(.» L/J_‘:— -~ Cha (L (1 o l.-t\-‘_ (‘-x): W t:t\L,- < bj r ..?j acl by qu,
Spplicc i S [ | V
14d Uou fv‘“’“fw“/

(’\)Q Fo ML M DREwZRY )

77



NHS

Lincolnshire
Integrated Care Board

NHS Lincolnshire Integrated Care Board
Application Number: 2024/0687/FUL

Location: Land Adjacent to Lindum and Minster Practice, Cabourne Court,

Lincoln, LN2 2JP
AMENDMENT AS REQUESTED

Impact of new
development on
GP practice

The above development is proposing a 59 single bed care home which, using the
Carr-Hill multiplier to take in account of the nature of the occupants (care home).
This multiplier would increase the population from 59 to a weighted population of 84
(59 x 1.43 equals 84).

The Carr-Hill multiplier was generated as a result of studies investigating the relative
workload generated by patients in nursing and residential homes. These studies
gathered information on the frequency and duration of consultations carried out and
found that overall, patients in these environments generate more workload than
patients with otherwise similar characteristics who are not in nursing and residential
homes. As such, the Carr-Hill multiplier is routinely used to calculate the workload
factor that should be applied to patients in care facilities.

The calculations below show the likely impact of this new population in terms of
number of additional consultation time required by clinicians. This is based on the
Department of Health calculation in HBN11-01: Facilities for Primary and Community
Care Services.

Consulting room GP

Proposed weighted 84
population
Access rate 5260 per 1000 patients

Anticipated annual contacts 0.084 x 5260 = 443.79
Assume 100% patient use of 444
room

Assume surgery open 50| ,44c0_gg
weeks per year :

Appointment duration 15 mins
Patient appointment time hrs 8.9 x 15/60 = 2.2 hrs per week
per week ) ) P

Treatment room Practice Nurse

Proposed population 84
Access rate 5260 per 1000 patients
Anticipated annual contacts 0.084 x 5260 = 443.79
Assume 20% patient use of 89

room
Assume surgery open 50 89 /50 =1.775
weeks per year

Appointment duration 20 mins

Patient appointment time hrs | 1.775 x 20/60 = 0.6 hrs per week
per week

1 Sounce; Linooinshine: Research Obsenvatony 2011 Census Data

78



Therefore, an increase in population of 84 in the City of Lincoln Council area will
place extra pressure on existing provisions, for example- extra appointments
requires additional consulting hours (as demonstrated in the calculations above.)
This in tumn impacts on premises, with extra consulting/treatment room requirements.

GP practice(s)
most likely to be
affected by the
housing
development

Due to the fact that patients can choose to register at any practice that covers the
area of the development, and there are no waiting lists for patients, all practices that
provide care for the region that the development falls within are obliged to take on
patients, regardless of capacity.

The development will impact Lindum Medical Practice, Minster Medical Practice,
Glebe Park Surgery, Cliff House Medical Practice, Abbey Medical Practice, Brayford
Medical Practice, Heart of Lincoln Medical Group as the development is within their
catchment area.

Issues to be
addressed to
ensure the
development is
acceptable

This development would put additional demands on the existing GP services for the
area and additional infrastructure would be reguired to meet the increased demands.

MHS Lincolnshire Integrated Care Board (LICBE) wishes for the Section 106
contribution from the development of 59 single bed care home on Land adjacent to
Lindum and Minster Practice, Cabourne Court, Lincoln, LN2 2JP to contribute to the
expansion in capacity through remodelling/changes to layout or extension to existing
facilities within the IMP Primary Care Metwork (PCN) at Lindum Medical Practice
and/or Minster Medical Practice Alternatively, the funding may, where appropriate,
be used to support expansion in capacity at an alternative general practice site as
required to meet the local population health need.

The funding will be used to support the practice where the care home is aligned,
once it is nearing completion. The Lincolnshire Integrated Care Board may need the
flexibility to utilise the funding at neighbouring practices which cover the area in order
to create the capacity.

The strategic direction both nationally through the development of PCNs and locally
through the Sustainability Transformation Plan is to provide primary care at scale,
facilitating 100% patient population primary care and services delivered in the
community in an integrated way. Included within the PCNs this is the introduction of
additional roles to enhance the delivery of primary care, including a Clinical
Pharmacist, Physiotherapist and Social Prescriber.

Mationally the NHS Long Term Plan, published in January 2019, seeks to improve
the guality of patient care and health outcomes. The plan builds on previous national
strategies, including the General Practice Forward View (2018), includes measures
to:

+ Improve out-of-hospital care, supporting primary medical and community
health services;

+ Ensure all children get the best start in life by continuing to improve maternity
safety including halving the number of stillbirths, maternal and neonatal
deaths and serious brain injury by 2025;

79




+ Support older people through more personalised care and stronger
community and primary care services;

s Make digital health services a mainstream part of the NHS, so that patients in
England will be able to access a digital GP offer.

The Minster Medical Practice & Lindum Medical Practice are within the LICE IMP
PCM where the housing is being developed, there is a huge variation in the type; age
and suitability of premises within the PCN of the planned development.

Fairly and
reasonably
related in scale
and kind to the
development.

Average | Required £ per m2 Total cost fper

list size | m2 person

per GP
GP team 1,800 170 2,300 £381,000 217
GP furnishings 1,800 £20,000 12

229

Contingency requirements @ 20% 46
Total per resident 275
Total per dwelling (resident x 1.43) 393.25

The table above shows the contribution formula which is based on the needs of a
Primary Care Health Team and associated administration support. By applying
average national list sizes to these groups and identifying the required area and
furnishings, a total cost of £275 per patient is determined. This figure is multiplied by
1.43 (the average number of persons per dwelling for the Carr-Hill formula) to provide
a funding per dwelling of £393.25.

Financial The contribution requested for the development is £23,201.75 (£393.25 x 59 single
Contribution bed occupancy care home dwellings).
requested
Please note that the expectation is that the appropriate indexation rate and any late
payment penalties would also be paid on top of the value specified above.
Trigger point After reviewing the practice response regarding their capacity to accommodate the

increase in patient numbers arising from this development, it's requested that the
trigger point for the release for funds for health care be set at payment of all monies
upon completion of 50 percent of the dwellings for each phase of the development.
This will ensure the practices are not placed under undue pressure.

To ensure that there is sufficient time carry out the works and allow the s106 funds fo
be spent in the most appropriate way, a repayment period of 10 years from receipt of
the final payment transfer (for the entire development) to the relevant NHS body will
be required.

NHS Lincolnshire Integrated Care Board
215t November 2024

NHS Lincolnshire Integrated Care Board
16" December 2024

80




Environment
LW Agency

Julie Mason Our ref: AN/2024/136044/01-L01
City of Lincoln Council Your ref:  2024/0687/FUL
Development Control

City Hall Date: 11 November 2024
Beaumont Fee

Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN1 1DF

Dear Julie

Erection of a 3 storey care home (Use Class C2) together with associated access,
car and cycle parking, landscaping and amenity space provision plus the creation
of additional car parking spaces for the existing adjacent medical practices.

Land Adjacent to Lindum and Minster Practice, Cabourne Court, Lincoln,
Lincolnshire, LN2 2JP

Thank you for consulting us on the above application, on 23 October 2024.

Environment Agency position
Whilst we have no objections to this application, we would like to draw the applicant's
attention to the following informative comments:

Water Recycling Centre (WRC) Capacity

The evidence available to us demonstrates that Canwick (WRC) is near its permitted
limits and that additional flows could lead to the WRC exceeding its permit limits, which
could cause pollution to the River Witham (GB205030062425). Anglian Water Services
(AWS) are legally obliged to operate within permit limits and the Environment Agency
will take all necessary action to ensure that the receiving watercourse is protected.

AWS has not yet demonstrated how it would manage the additional flow from this
development if there is no capacity at the WRC to treat it. This appears to be contrary to
Policy 521 (Flood Risk and Water Resources) of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan
2023. We encourage the council to liaise with AWS and ensure that acceptable plans
are in place for the management of foul water, in advance of planning permission being
determined. We also encourage the council to be aware of the measures that would be
required to be taken by AWS, to ensure that the additional flows from the development
would be accommodated.

Groundwater protection

We would like to refer the applicant to our groundwater position statements in ‘The
Environment Agency's approach to groundwater protection’, available from gov.uk. This
publication sets out our position for a wide range of activities and developments,
including drainage, with particular reference to Position Statements G12 (Discharge of
clean roof water to ground) and G13 (Sustainable drainage systems).

SuDS- infiltration

Environment Agency

Ceres House, Searby Road, Lincoln, LN2 40W
Email: LMplanning@environment-agency.gov.uk
www gov ulklenvironment-agency

Cusformer senices ling: 03708 506 506
Calls to 03 numbers cost the s5ame as cals fo sfandard
geographic numbers (Le. numbears baginning with 07 ar 02).

Cont/d..

81



Approved Document Part H of the Building Regulations 2010 establishes a hierarchy for
surface water disposal, and encourages a SuDS approach.

The first option for surface water disposal should be the use of SuDS, which encourage
infiltration such as soakaways or infiltration trenches. In all cases, it should be
established that these options are feasible, can be adopted and properly maintained
and would not lead to any other environmental problems. For example, using
soakaways or other infiltration methods on contaminated land carries groundwater
pollution risks and may not work in areas with a high water table.

Where the intention is to dispose to soakaway, these should be shown to work through
an appropriate assessment carried out under Building Research Establishment (BRE)
Digest 365.

Waste disposal

Drainage plans and layout plans were submitted as part of this application. Plans
suggest provision for both sluice rooms and laundry room which could deal with
healthcare waste products. Laundry could involve on site cleaning of heavily soiled
healthcare wastes or plans may involve contractors providing laundry services. A refuse
store is also proposed.

Ensure any contractors and waste management companies involved are assessed for
suitability before contracts are signed. Ensure that ongoing performance is tracked with
clear performance standards laid out to ensure the site maintains environmental
compliance and meets the "Waste duty of care: code of practice”. This ensures
activities are aligned to the guidance document Healthcare Technical Memorandum 07-
01.

* Duty of Care Code of Practice
https:/fwww.gov.uk/government/publications/waste-duty-of-care-code-of-practice

+ HTM 07-01 https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/management-and-disposal-
of-healthcare-waste-htm-07-01/

The drainage plans detail connection to the larger development foul sewer network
which is proposed. The sewerage undertaker will be required to grant a trade effluent
discharge which will detail the limits of any discharge that is made to the sewer network.

Should you require any additional information, or wish fo discuss these matters further,
please do not hesitate to contact me using the details below.

Yours sincerely
Hannah Kelly

Planning Adviser
<! Ceres House, Searby Rd, Lincoln, LN2 4DW

“%  hannah.kelly@environment-agency.gov.uk
Team email: LNplanning@environment-agency.qov.uk

End 2

82



Dear Sir/Madam,

Witham Third IDB Extended Area - the board has no comments on this application, the development does not
affect the interests of the board.

However, if any proposed temporary or permanent works or structures are within any watercourse Land
Drainage Consent may be required.

Regards,

James Neill
Technical and Operations Assistant

1 ¥
k‘*‘
WITHAM AND HUMBER
DRAINAGE BOARDS

Witham First District Internal Drainage Board
Witham Third District Internal Drainage Board
Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board

North East Lindsey Drainage Board

Witham House,
Meadow Lane,
North Hykeham,

83



Directorate of Communities & Environment
Simon Walters MBA, ACG, MCMI
City Hall, Beaumont Fee
Lincoln, LN1 1DF
24" October 2024

Your Ref: 2024/0687/FUL

Town and Country Planning Act 1990
Consultation on Planning Permission

Land Adjacent to Lindum and Minster Practice, Cabourne Court, Lincoln, Lincolnshire,
LN2 2JP.

Erection of a 3-storey care home (Use Class C2) together with associated access, car
and cycle parking, landscaping and amenity space provision plus the creation of
additional car parking spaces for the existing adjacent medical practices.

Lincolnshire Police do not have any objections to this development.
Access Control = Staff & Residents

It is important that every consideration is given to reducing or restricting the opportunity for
uninvited ‘cold callers’ or other visitors. This is particularly the case where there may be
some residents who could be elderly and vulnerable.

The requirement and provision for dedicated access control would be a principal element of
this application and important for the safety and security of residents and staff.

Electronic access should be a safety and security feature of this development at the main
entrances to the main block.

The need to protect a lone worker or vulnerable persons.
To prevent access into parts of the building.
In all cases the doors must incorporate an electronic door release system with
electronic door release (and for the main entrance and possible other
entrances depending on operational use) an entry phone system linked to the
reception and or mobile smart phone.

+ This may be particularly important in respect of the safety and security of residents
and more so if any relevant orders should apply.

s Security devices (e.g., locking devices, door closers etc.) should be designed, where
appropriate for ease of use by people with disabilities.

POLICE HEADQUARTERS

PO Box 998, Lincoln LN5 7PH L. 01522 55 8292
(Sat Nav: LN2 2LT) B 075700 93424
www.lincs.police.uk johmmanuel@lines.prn.police.uk

84



Buggy Store (if included)

External access to this facility should be included within a secure access-controlled regime
and meet the same standards or alternatively appropriately secured doors and windows
should be a feature of this store.

Where access can be gained via both the waste storage area and the buggy store
appropriate and effective access control measures should be included.

Landscaping

Any landscaping should be kept to a maximum growth height of 1 metre. Whilst any trees
should be pruned up to a minimum height of 2 metres, thereby maintaining a clear field of
vision around the development. Trees when fully grown should not mask any lighting
columns or become climbing aids.

Footpaths

It is preferable that footpaths are not placed to the rear of properties or provide such access,
if deemed essential they should be securely gated. The gates should be placed to the front
of the building line and suitable illuminated with a key operated lock from both sides of the
gate. Effort should be made to ensure that the opportunity for concealed and easy access fo
individual premises is avoided; this is particularly relevant to ground floor windows.

Developers should ensure that access to the rear of the building is secured by
access-confrolled gates.

Lighting

Regarding the lighting | would suggest that extemnal lighting be low energy consumption
lamps with an efficacy of greater than 40 lumens per circuit watt. The Code for Sustainable
Homes requires security lighting to be PIR and for the lamp not to exceed 150w. Secured by
Design has not specified this type of security lighting for several years following advice from
the institute of Lighting Engineers and police conceming the increase in the fear of crime
(particularly amongst the elderly) due to repeated PIR activations. Research has proven that
a constant level of illumination is more effective at controlling the night environment. The
Code for Sustainable Homes does not penalise specifiers that follow the SBD guidance
(constant level of illumination by utilising low energy luminaries) and allows credits to be
awarded for ‘default case’.

External lighting must be switched using a photo electric cell (dusk to dawn) with a manual
override.

Building Regulations (October 1%, 2015) provides that for the first time all new homes will
be included within Approved Document Q: Security — Dwellings (ADGQ).

Approved document Q applies to all new dwellings including those resulting from change of
use, such as commercial premises, warehouse and bamns undergeing conversions into
dwellings. It also applies within Conservation Areas.

This will include doors at the entrance to dwellings, including all doors to flats or apartments,
communal doors to multi-occupancy developments and garage doors where there is a direct
access to the premises. Where bespoke timber doors are proposed, there is a technical
specification in Appendix B of the document that must be me.

85



Windows: in respect of ground floor, basement, and other easily accessible locations.
External doors

The Secured by Design requirement for all external door sets is PAS 242016 (doors of an
enhanced security). This applies to flat entrance door-seis and as such should meet
the same specifications as ‘front door’. The locking hardware shall be operable from both
sides of an unlocked door without the use of a key (using a roller latch). If the door set is
certified to either PAS 24:2012 or STS 201 Issued: 2012 then it must be classified as DKT.

Climbing Aids

Where balconies are included, they should be designed to remove any potential to be used
as a climbing aid to gain access to any part of the property.

Windows

All ground floor windows and those that are easily accessible from the ground must conform
to improved security standard BS7950: 1997 or WCL 4. PAS24:2016 Glazing should include
at least one pane of laminated glass to a minimum thickness of 6.8 mm. (WCL 4 is the
reference number for BS7950 and is published by Warrington Certification Laboratories).

Window retainers may be applicable on the ground floor windows as well as all other
accessible windows.

CCTV

A suitable CCTV scheme is recommended to monitor and record all vulnerable areas of the
proposed development; the requirement will be for both internal and external coverage. The
external coverage will reinforce the access control requirements at the main entrance. The
installed scheme will require defined surveillance protocols to be established.

Signage.

Effective use of directional and informative signage can do much to reduce the opportunity
for any persons accessing the site and not knowing where they should be. Site maps and
clear directions to a security office or reception will reduce any opportunity for unwarranted
trespass on the site.

Crime prevention advice is given free without the intention of creating a contract. Meither the
Home Office nor the Police Service takes any legal responsibility for the

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you need further information or clarification.

Please refer to Homes 2023 which can be located on www.securedbydesign.com Homes
2014

Crime prevention advice is given free without the intention of creating a contract.
Neither the Home Office nor the Police Service takes any legal responsibility for the advice
given. However, if the advice is implemented it will reduce the opportunity for crimes to be
committed.

Yours sincerely,

John Manuel ma Ba (Hons) PGCE PGCPR Dip Bus.
Dip Crime Prevention — Designing Out Crime

Force Designing Out Crime Officer (DOCO)

86



Consultee Details

Name: Mr Tony Maltby

Address: St Marys Guidhall,, 385 High Street, LINCOLN LN5 7SF
Email: Not Available

On Behalf Of: Lincoln Civic Trust

Comments

OBJECTION

We have no objection to the plan for the building but feel that the entrance to property from
Cabourne Avenue is totally inadequate and the additional drain on local facilities has not been
properly catered for. Visiting the Doctors practices and the other medical facilities is already
difficult as the entrance is not wide enough for two vehicles to pass and the additional volume will
see a queue build up on Cabourne Avenue. There will be a major increase in the volume of waste
generated and hence refuse disposal, in the access to doctors service which is already difficult
and to the number of vehicle movements during the day. We strongly believe that this has not
been properly considered and would suggest that further investigation is required.

87



This page is intentionally blank.



[tem No. 5¢

Application Number: | 2024/0719/RG3

Site Address: 120 Larchwood Crescent, Lincoln

Target Date: 12th February 2025

Agent Name: City Of Lincoln Council

Applicant Name: Mr Steven Bird

Proposal: Change of use of public amenity land to use as a garden.

Background - Site Location and Description

The application property is 120 Larchwood Crescent, a 2-storey brick dwellinghouse in the
City Council's Ownership.

The application is for the change of use of a patch of land to the side of the property which
is currently subject to anti-social behaviour risk. The land is currently residential amenity
land owned by the City Council and they wish to use this as garden land.

The application is brought before Planning Committee because the land is Council owned
and is therefore a regulation 3 application.

Site History
No relevant site history.

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 6 February 2025.

Policies Referred to

e National Planning Policy Framework
e Policy S53 Design and Amenity

Issues
The proposals have been assessed with regard to:

Accordance with National and Local Planning Policy

Design and the Impact on Visual Amenity, Character and Appearance
Impact on Residential Amenity

Highways Safety, Access and Parking

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted January 2023.

Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee Comment

Highways & Planning Comments Received

89



Public Consultation Responses

No responses received.

Consideration

Accordance with National and Local Planning Policy

Paragraph 11 of the revised NPPF outlines that decisions should apply a presumption in
favour of sustainable development. For decision-taking this means approving development
proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan without delay.

Paragraph 130 states that planning decisions should ensure that developments:

e will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term
but over the lifetime of the development;

e are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;

e are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate
innovation or change (such as increased densities);

e establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive
places to live, work and visit;

e optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount
and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local
facilities and transport networks; and

e create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where
crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or
community cohesion and resilience.

The application is for alterations to a residential dwelling and therefore Policy S53 - Design
and Amenity is relevant.

Policy S53 'Design and Amenity' covers all new development. The policy permissive of
alterations to existing buildings providing they achieve a high-quality sustainable design that
contributes positively to local character, landscape and townscape, and supports diversity,
equality and access for all.

Alterations should reflect or improve on the original architectural style of the local
surroundings or embrace opportunities for innovative design and new technologies which
sympathetically complement or contrast with the local architectural style and should not
result in harm to people's amenity either within the proposed development or neighbouring
through overlooking, overshadowing, loss of light or increase in artificial light or glare.

Design and the Impact on Visual Amenity, Character and Appearance

The amenity land currently comprises a grassed area with some shrubs and is adjacent to
a public pathway.

Officers are satisfied that the use of the land as domestic garden in association with 120

90



Larchwood Crescent would not be detrimental to the visual amenity of the wider area.

The design outlined in the proposal would be characteristic to the wider area and relate well
to the existing dwelling, given the area of land proposed and Officers consider that the
proposal would not result in any significant impact to the appearance or design of the
dwelling or wider area in accordance with Policy S53 of the CLLP.

Impact on Residential Amenity

The dwelling is on an end plot with a boundary adjacent to the amenity space and a pathway.

The use of the area as a garden will offer improved privacy to the area in so far as eliminating
people walking across this patch of grassland and as an anti-social behaviour risk. Given
the residential location of the property and other dwellings nearby will be consistent with the
wider area.

The grassland is to the side of the property which faces out onto a public pathway and
therefore it is not considered there would be any neighbouring properties unduly impacted
upon by the proposal.

It is considered the change of use to a garden would not cause undue harm to the amenities
which neighbouring occupiers may reasonably expect to enjoy, in accordance with CLLP
Policy S53.

Highways Safety, Access and Parking

The Highways Authority have raised no objection to the application, and Officers do not
consider Highway Safety or Traffic Capacity would be harmed by the proposal.

Application Negotiated either at Pre-Application or During Process of Application

No.

Financial Implications

None.

Legal Implications

None

Equality Implications

None.
Conclusion
The proposals would not have a detrimental impact on the residential and visual amenity of

neighbouring properties in accordance with policies S53 of the Central Lincolnshire Local
Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

91



Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That the application is granted.
Standard Conditions

01) The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning
with the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

02) With the exception of the detailed matters referred to by the conditions of this consent,
the development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
drawings listed within Table A below.

The works shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on the approved
plans and in any other approved documents forming part of the application.

Reason: To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the approved
plans.

Conditions to be discharged before commencement of works
None.

Conditions to be discharged before use is implemented
None.

Conditions to be adhered to at all times
None.

Table A

The above recommendation has been made in accordance with the submitted drawings
identified below:

Drawing No. Version | Drawing Type Date Received
Location Plan 17th December
2024

92



Juadsal) poomyale Ozl




This page is intentionally blank.



	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes - 29 January 2025
	4 Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order 188
	5a 15 St Andrews Drive, Lincoln
	15 St andrews Drive _Supporting evidence
	15 St Andrews Drive_ Consultee comments
	15 St Andrews Drive_ Neighbour Comments

	5b Land Adjacent To Lindum And Minster Practice, Cabourne Court, Lincoln
	Cabourne Court plans (1)
	Cabourne Court consultation responses

	5c 120 Larchwood Crescent, Lincoln
	120 Larchwood Location Plan




